o Los Alamos

NATIONAL LABORATORY

Laboratory Counsel General Law

P.O. Box 1663, MS: A187

Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545 Date: November 7, 2001
(505) 667-3766/Fax (505) 665-4424

HAND DELIEVERED
Tannis Fox, Esq.
Assistant General Counsel
New Mexico Environment Department
P.O. Drawer 26110
Santa Fe, NM 87502-6110

RE:  Compliance Order 99-03 Response to Request for Additional Information

Dear Ms. Fox,

Enclosed please find the original affidavits of Stephanie Archuleta, Richard Carlson, Sean French, Brady
Means and Barbara Smith. These affidavits are provide in response to the New Mexico Environment
Department’s request for additional information regarding various finding cited in Compliance Order 99-
03 relating to the 1997 RCRA inspection of Los Alamos National Laboratory. In addition, also enclosed
are five Hazardous and Mixed Waste Facility Inspection Record Forms for inspections at TA-54 Area L
relating to the issue in the affidavits Brady Means and Sean French.

I have enclosed an additional set of copies of the above referenced documents for Ms. Brinkerhoff,

Should you have any questions regarding these documents do not hesitate to contact Ellen Louderbough.
Ellen will back in the office the week of November 19",

Sincerely,

S. Catherine Thayer
Environmental Paral

SCT/
Ce: B. Osheim, DOE/LAAO, MS-A-316

Records Room
LC/GL File
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
IN THE MATTER OF
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE HRM-99-03(CO)
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)
LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO
NM0890010515

AFFIDAVIT

1) I, Stephanie A. Archuleta, am an employee of the University of California at Los
Alamos National Laboratory (LANL).

2) I have been employed at LANL as a contractor or UC employee since September
1988.

3) I am aware of the statements contained in finding number 14 and conclusion of law
number 7 of the New Mexico Environment Department’s (NMED) Compliance Order NMHWA

99-03.

4) At the time of the 1997 inspection I was ESH-Generalist with Physics Facility
Management (P-FM).

5) After joining the P-FM in the spring of 1997 I asked my the facility manager about the
status of the TA-3 Ion Beam Facility (IBF) and was told that the Physics Division Office made a
decision to put the IBF into an operational stand-by mode after the tenant organization
determined it could no longer fund operational costs and the space tax.

6) On information and belief the IBF was at all times under the management and control
of P-FM.

7) In 1997 the IBF was in deactivated status with all primary experimental equipment left
in place so as to be operationally ready when needed.

8) All hazardous waste had been removed from the IBF < 90-day storage area(s) and
Satellite Accumulation Area(s) and they were closed when I arrived at P-FM.

9) In late spring of 1997, the Physics Division Office determined it would not reoccupy
the space and that the facility was excess to the Division’s programmatic mission.

10) As the ESH-Generalist for P-FM, I was tasked to begin close-out activities which
became the IBF Safe Shutdown Plan.



11) As part of the Safe Shutdown I initiated a chemical inventory to identify products that
could be used by other groups within the Division.

12) I worked with the CHEAPER program (EM-SWO), the ACIS program (ESH-5),
theDARHTProject), to transfer materials on-site and off-site (to organizations such as Lawrence

Berkeley Laboratory, Yale University and the University of Florida) to programs that could use
chemical products and equipment from the IBF.

13) All chemical product that could not be transferred to new owners or otherwise
recycled were disposed of as waste.

14 Other equipment was excessed through standard DOE processes.
15) The close-out activities were completed by P-FM in 1999.

16) The building is currently in excess status under the control of FWO Division.

Msolzw AMobesete

Stephante A. Archu

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS )

SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me this /;/: & day of

October, 2001, by Stephanie A. Archuleta.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

/ 25 Lov



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

IN THE MATTER OF

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE HRM-99-03(CO)
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)

LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO

NM0890010515

AFFIDAVIT

1) I, Richard V. Carlson, am an employee of the University of California at Los Alamos
National Laboratory (LANL).

2) I have been employed by LANL since 1975.
3) I am with the Tritium Science and Engineering Group.

4) I am aware of the statements contained in finding number 30 and conclusion of law
number 9 of the New Mexico Environment Department’s (NMED) Compliance Order NMHWA
99-03.

5) At the time of the 1997 NMED inspection the titanium metal located at TA-21
Building 209 was commercial product.

6) The titanium metal was in the original shipping drum.

7) The titanium metal was properly labeled and had the appropriate Material Safety Data
Sheet with the drum.

8) The titanium is used for two operations: 1) collection of impure gases to maintain an
ultra pure glovebox atmosphere; and, 2) as a solid storage material for hydrogen isotopes.

9) To create an ultra pure helium glovebox atmosphere, the titanium is placed in a
titanium furnace adjacent to the glovebox. The furnace is approximately two cubic feet in size.

The helium gas in the glovebox is forced through the furnace where the heated titanium captures
impurities from the helium. The pure helium is returned to the glovebox.

10) The furnace has been used for this type of operation from 1974 to 1996.

11) The furnace was last used approximately 5 years ago.

13) An air permit is not required for this operation because neither the furnace nor the
glovebox emit gases or particulates. The process is a closed system.



14) The titanium in the furnace was last replaced around 1990.

15) The titanium product remains at TA-21, Building 209. We are currently shutting
down the tritium facilities at TA-21, and may use the titanium for storage of tritium during the

shutdown.

16) After completing the shutdown of the tritium facilities, titanium no longer needed to
support operations at TA-21 will be moved to TA-16, for use in the future to store hydrogen
and/or the gettering of selected gases.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Rl U (b~

Richard V. Carlson

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.

COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS )

+
SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me this \S day of
November, 2001, by Richard V. Carlson.

Sk Y. MN&Q\

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

Weergy 24 J00)




STATE OF NEW MEXICO & LfO
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

IN THE MATTER OF

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE HRM-99-03(CO)
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)

LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO

NM0890010515

AFFIDAVIT

1) I, Sean B. French, am an employee of the University of California at Los Alamos
National Laboratory (LANL).

2) I have been employed at LANL since June of 1994.

3) I am aware of the statements contained in finding number 77 and conclusion of law
number 40 of the New Mexico Environment Department’s (NMED) Compliance Order
NMHWA 99-03.

4) During the 1997 inspection of TA-54 by the NMED, I was the Team Leader for a
group of LANL environmental professionals tasked with accompanying NMED inspectors
during their visit and responding to their requests for information.

A 5) On July 9, 1997, one of the individuals on my team, who has since left LANL,
accompanied John Tymkowych when he inspected the containers stored at TA-54, Area L,
Dome 215 on July 9, 1997, this individual reported to me that Mr. Tymkowych had walked
through the dome and looked at all of the containers stored there.

6) This individual also informed me that during his inspection of Dome 215, Mr.
Tymkowych requested the following information: 1) the Waste Data Form and Waste Profile
Form (24069) for container 91003413; 2) the date of receipt for container C97077182; 3) the
~ date when waste was transferred from seven 350-gallon tuff tanks (C97077179 - C97077184 and
C97077188) into 55-gallon drums; and, 4) the waste generation history of a 5-gallon bucket of
waste documented on Waste Profile Form 21453. The individual reported to me that all the
requested information had been provided to Mr. Tymkowych.

7) At no time during or after the inspection of Dome 215 did Mr. Tymkowych express,
to me or anyone on my team, any concerns regarding the labels on any of the drums being faded,
illegible and/or incomplete.

8) At no time during or after the inspection of Dome 215 did Mr. Tymkowych question
accumulation start dates for any of the containers in the Dome.



9) Frank Sanchez and Mike LeScouarnec of the NMED reviewed inspection records for
TA-54, Area L on October 22, 1997.

10) Mr. Sanchez noted a finding that some drums in Dome 215 had labels that were
faded, illegible or incomplete. Mr. Sanchez was asked to go to Dome 215 and examine the
drums in question, but declined to do so.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Sean B. Frefich
STATE OF NEW MEXICO )

) ss.
COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS )

SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me this & g)day of
November, 2001, by Sean B. French.

TARY PUBLIC

iy Commission Expires:

o focos



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
IN THE MATTER OF
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE HRM-99-03(CO)
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA . (1997 Inspection)
LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO
NM0890010515

AFFIDAVIT

1) I, Brady K. Means, am an employee of the University of California at Los Alamos
National Laboratory (LANL).

2) T have been employed by LANL since 1984.
3) I have performed RCRA inspections at TA-54 Area L since 1993.

4) I am aware of the statements contained in finding number 77 and conclusion of law
number 40 of the New Mexico Environment Department’s (NMED) Compliance Order
NMHWA 99-03.

5) I am the LANL TA-54 inspector who inspected TA-54 Area L on or about the week of
April 14 through April 18, 1997 and subsequent weeks.

6) I recorded inspection findings on a Hazardous and Mixed Waste Facility Inspection
Record Form (IRF) during each inspection I made, and did so in April 1997.

7) The April 14 through April 18, 1997, IRF references a number of items known as
“action required” (AR). AR 2 reads, “labels on secondary waste generated by mixed waste SSD
project are faded, illegible and incomplete.” AR 3 reads, “labels on some drums of secondary
waste generated by mixed waste SSD project are missing accumulation start dates”.

8) It is an has been the practice at Area L to affix DOT hazard class labels on each drum
of RCRA regulated waste, or to include on the RCRA label the DOT hazard class information
for the waste in the drum. The DOT hazard class information is used to appropriately segregate
waste drums.

9) AR2 and AR3 were resolved by working with staff who had access to the necessary
information regarding the contents of the drums and the accumulation start dates.



R

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Brady eans

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS )

SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me this ¢y} day of
@¥aber, 2001, by Brady K. Means.

L
NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

CP';&A | 4- Looq
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HAZARDOUS AND MIXED WASTE FACILITY INSPECTION RECORD FORM
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HAZARDOUS ANDQIXED WASTE FACILITY INST_JCTION RECORD FORM
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_"HAZARDOUS AND MIXED WASTE FACILITY INSPECTION RECORD.FORM
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT M
IN THE MATTER OF
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE HRM-99-03(CO)
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)
LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO
NM0890010515
AFFIDAVIT

1) I, Barbara F. Smith, am an employee of the University of California at Los Alamos
National Laboratory (LANL).

2) I have been employed with LANL since 1984.

3) I am aware of the statements contained in finding number 47 and conclusion of law
number 37 of the New Mexico Environment Department’s (NMED) Compliance Order
NMHWA 99-03.

4) At the time of the 1997 inspection I was with Chemical Science and Technology
Organic Chemistry Group (CST-12).

5) At the time of the inspection I was the team leader for the experimental work be ing
conducted at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Rm. B6.

6) At the time of the inspection CST-12 was in the process of setting up new equipment
in our laboratory at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Rm. B6.

7) At the time of the inspection a new mercury analyzer instrument was being assembled,
tested, and calibrated.

8) We were running large amounts of water through the system to check flow meters and
solenoid valves. We were having trouble getting the ball meters working properly and were in
the process of replacing them. »

9) The technician who was performing this work is no longer in CST-12.

10) The reagent we used to calibrate the machine flow was water. Reagents that are
generally used in the analysis are tin chloride in dilute hydrochloric acid.

11) When the reagents used for analysis mixed with the volume of water in the collection
container, it would have formed a slightly acidic solution.



g

12) Because of the large but unquantified volume of water we ran through the machine
prior to calibration, I cannot calculate the pH of the solution in the container.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

BARBARA F. SMITH

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SS.

N’ N’ N

COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS

SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me this // &day of
October, 2001, by Barbara F. Smith.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

fﬁ/ﬁ 25, 1004
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Los Alamos

NATIONAL LABORATORY
Laboratory Counsel Yl General Law Offices

P. O. Box 1663/MS A187 Date: March 14, 2000
1650 Trinity Drive . . .
Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545 Symbol: GL: 10520-3920

(505) 667-3766, FAX:665-4424

H DELIVERED

Connie M. Salazar

Hearing Clerk

New Mexico Environment Department
1190 St;{‘ Francis Drive, Rm. N4084
Santa Fe, NM 87502

. RE: COMPLIANCE ORDER 99-03 - ANSWER

Please find enclosed the original Answer to Administrative Compliance Order signed by the
Regents of the University of California (UC) in connection with Compliance Order HRM - 99-
03, as well as documents demonstrating compliance with ordered actions. Also enclosed is the
Certificate of Service, and a copy of the Compliance Order.

Sincerely,

e T \«ov\&u&am&@

Ellen T. Louderbough
Staff Attorney

Encs.

Cys:  Tannis Fox, NMED, (with enclosures) . )
Hortense Haynes, LAAO, (with enclosures)
LC/GL
File (2)



Department of Energy
Albuquerque Operations
Los Alamos Area Office

Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544

MAR 1 4 2000

Ms. Connie Salazar

Hearing Clerk

New Mexico Environment Department
1190 St. Francis Drive

Santa Fe, NM 87502

Re: IN THE MATTER OF U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND
THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LOS
ALAMOS, New Mexico, NM0890010515; COMPLIANCE ORDER
HRM-99-03

Dear Ms. Salazar:

Enclosed for filing is the Answer of the U.S. Department of Energy in the
above matter, together with a copy of Compliance Order HRM-99-03.
The enclosure to the Answer of the Regents of the University of
California entitled, “99-03 Ordered Actions,” and the enclosure to ,

this letter comprise the Department’s response to the above order.

We have also provided a copy of our Answer to counsel for the
Complainant. Please call me at (505) 667-4667 if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

7 L Cheeon

Elizabeth L. Osheim
Counsel

Enclosure: As Stated



The issue has arisen as to whether the chemical products that are the subject of
Compliance Order (CO) 99-03 constituted solid waste regulated under Subtitle C of the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). To arrive at such a conclusion, one
must determine if the chemicals were either secondary materials within the meaning
established by recycling regulations, or if an intent to discard existed.

A brief examination of EPA’s regulatory structure designed for recycling is useful in
determining whether these materials were solid wastes. On January 4, 1985
(50FR616)(see attachment #1), EPA revised the definition of solid waste as it relates to
recycling such that both knowledge of what a material is and how it is recycled is
necessary to determine RCRA Subtitle C applicability. EPA’s jurisdiction includes
“secondary material”, identified as spent materials, sludges, by-products, commercial
chemical products (recycled in ways that differ from normal use (S0FR618, #2)), and
scrap metal. Once a substance is determined to be secondary material, the manner in
which it is recycled must be evaluated to arrive at Subtitle C applicability. If its use
constitutes disposal, if it is burned for energy recovery, used to produce fuel, inherently
waste-like, reclaimed, or accumulated speculatively, a secondary material is defined as a
solid waste (261.2(c) & (d), #3) . Ifit is secondary material recycled by use or reuse as

an ingredient in a production process, as a substitute for 3 commercial product or in a
closed loop process, it is not a solid waste (261.2(e)(1), #4)

To establish whether these CO99-03 chemicals represent secondary material and
potentially solid waste, one must consider EPA’s discussion regarding the definition of
secondary material as well as the relationship between recycling and commercial
chemical products. In the January 4, 1985 FR preamble, EPA describes “secondary
material” as material that “potentially can be a solid and hazardous waste when
recycled”. Types of secondary material within Subtitle C jurisdiction are defined in the
rule published in the same FR and are identified in the above paragraph. As described,
the only conditions that might result in a commercial chemical product being construed
as a secondary material is when it is recycled in a manner constituting disposal or burned
for energy recovery — it would not normally be considered secondary material unless it
was recycled in ways that differ from its normal use (50FR618, #5). Because some
chemicals identified in CO99-03 would be included in the list of commercial chemical
products found in 261.33 but were not recycled by being disposed or burned for energy
recovery, they would not constitute secondary material: Other CO99-03 chemicals not
specifically included in 261.33 that exhibit a hazardous characteristic would be
considered by EPA to have the same status as those chemicals that are listed: “they are
not solid waste when recycled except when they are recycled in ways that differ from
their normal use” (April 11, 1985, 50 FR14219, #6). None of the C099-03 chemicals
were managed in such a manner so as to meet the definition of a secondary material. It

follows that if the product in question is not secondary material, it cannot be a solid waste
within the context of the recycling program.




EPA’s approach to listing ¢commensieiiiiey it bal roducts as hazardous waste is consistent
with the position it has taken W 1t regar to recychng Such¥ld ¥ From some of the
earliest rulemakings, EPA explained that a commercial chemical product need not be
regulated as hazardous unless it is discarded or intended to be discarded (45FR78540,
#7). Even the title phrase to the section that regulates commercial chemical products as
hazardous waste at 40CFR261.33 (#8) establishes that these are considered “Discarded
commercial chemical products” (emphasis added) and further identifies these materials as
“discarded or intended to be discarded”. In August 1987, EPA maintained this position
in a response to a RCRA Hotline question stating that a material remains a commercial
chemical product until such time as they are discarded or intended to be discarded _
(Section 261.2 and Section 261.33)” (#9). EPA reiterates this concept in its’ discussions
regarding commercial chemical products and wastes that are accumulated speculatively
without sufficient amounts being used, reused, or reclaimed. It describes such products
as “hazardous waste when discarded or intended for discard, and not when recycled or
intended for recycling ...” It goes on to clarify that “Commercial chemical products that
are being stored with recycling potential and with legitimate expectation of recycling,
therefore, are not intended for discard and thus are not subject to...” the speculative
accumulation provision (48FR14489, #10). By not being subject to speculative
accumulation, a product would be neither a solid nor a hazardous waste (40CFR261.2,
Table 1, #11). One could then conclude that if a commercial chemical product was
retained because, for all intents and purposes, it still represented a usable material, EPA
had not intended that it be categorized as a waste (45FR78540, 78541, and EPA’s “Re-
engineering RCRA For Recycling — Report and Recommendations of the Definition of
Solid Waste Task Force”, EPA530-R-94-016, (#12), November 1994, footnote 7: “The
Agency has determined that unused products or recycling scrap metal should not be
subject to Subtitle C requirements, and we have no information suggesting that these
requirements should be changed.”)

Additional support for the concept that commercial chemical products are hazardous
waste only when discarded or intended to be discarded exists in several other regulations
and preamble. The comment at 40CFR261.33(c) confirms the condition that causes a
product to be hazardous waste — it is “intended for discard” — not, however, when
“beneficially used, or reused, or legitimately recycled or reclaimed” (45FR78529 and
40CFR261.2, Table 1) (#13). EPA established this position again at 4SFR78540 (#14)
when it stated that “The purpose of 261.33 is to regulate only the listed chemical
products... as hazardous wastes when they are discarded or intended to be discarded.”
At 45FR78528, EPA clarified that commercial chemical products are not subject to the
provisions of 261.6 (#15) requiring RCRA-compliant storage and transportation of listed
wastes that are used, re-used, recycled or reclaimed, because “261.6 only applies to
hazardous waste, and materials listed in 261.33 become hazardous waste only when they
are discarded or are intended to be discarded.” EPA presents an interpretative question
on page 45FR78540, “Are the commercial products...listed in 261.33 subject to
regulation if they are used, reused, recycled, or reclaimed in lieu of being discarded?”
that clearly provides further support for this issue. In its answer, not only does EPA
restate that products are waste only when discarded or intended to be discarded, but it



goes on to reiterate that reused products listed at 261.33 were never intended to be subject
to 261.6 provisions because they are not waste. It states: “No. A commercial chemical
product .. .listed in 261.33 is a hazardous waste only if discarded or intended to be
discarded. If it continues to be used or sold, it is not being discarded and therefore is not
a hazardous waste...Thus the provisions of 261.6(b ’{are not intended to apply to reuses
of 261.33 materials, since in such cases the materials-are never discarded. The reference
in 261.6(b) to wastes “listed in subpart D” is confusing. Wastes listed in 261.31 and
261.32 are the only wastes intended to be included.” (#16). Clearly, EPA’s distinction
between product and waste is well-established based on its’ premise of discard.

If a product is only a waste when discarded, one must determine when discard (or intent
to do so) occurs by examining EPA’s concept of discard. Under 40CFR261.2, a material
is discarded by being either recycled by being used in a manner constituting disposal or
burned for energy recovery (in the case of products), or by being abandoned. For a
material to have been abandoned it must be disposed of, burned, incinerated, or stored
prior to or in lieu of these activities. EPA clarified that ‘abandoned’ was intended to
“simply mean thrown away” (50FR627, #17). With regard to products, EPA evaluated
whether such material, when accumulated over time without being used, met the criteria
for being abandoned. At SOFR636 (#18), EPA “indicated ...that commercial chemical
products that are hazardous waste when discarded (i.¢., those listed in 261.33 of the
regulations) were not subject to ...overaccumulation provisions”. EPA decided against
adopting time limitations to trigger a point at which a product not being used is
considered to be abandoned by being stored. It stated that “these materials are wastes
when discarded or intended for discard (by means of abandonment), and are not wastes
when stored for recycling (SOFR636, (#18)). EPA originally established this standard at
45FR33090 (#19) when it defined “other discarded material” as “(1) Any material which
is not re-used — i.e., is abandoned or committed to final disposal.” In summary, mere
storage of a product for an indefinite period (:gime does not indicate an intent to abandon

and hence, discard.
AV

Perhaps the most conclusive position established by EPA regarding “intent to discard” is
presented in preamble for the military munitions rule (60FR56471, #20). In its attempt to
define what constitutes an “intent to destroy” munitions, EPA compared munitions
management to that which causes commercial chemical products to become solid wastes.
It stated that “The Part 261 regulations regarding commercial products in storage rely
largely on the “intent” of the owner to discard; over the years EPA has sought to establish
simple, consistent, and enforceable principles regarding the point at which commercial
products are intended to be “discarded” — notably these are (1) when the products are
removed from storage for disposal, or treatment prior to disposal, (2) when the owner
declares them to be hazardous waste, and (3) when they are deteriorated or damaged
(e.g., leaking) to the point they cannot be used, or processed for beneficial use.” Not only
did EPA consider unused products not waste “until an intent to discard the material can
be demonstrated”, but it even allowed that an expired shelf life or deterioration would not
automatically cause the material to be “discarded”. On the same page it states that
“Under RCRA, unused products do not become “waste” until they become “discarded
material,” that is, until an intent to discard the material can be demonstrated. Even if a




commercial product’s shelf life has expired, or it can no longer be used for its intended
purpose (for example, because of physical deterioration), it may be reprocessed or used
for other purposes. Thus, it would not necessarily be considered “discarded material” or
solid waste.”

In conclusion, the chemicals identified in CO99-03 were not solid wastes because they
were neither secondary material nor had an intent to discard existed. They were not
secondary material because they were not recycled in a manner that differed from their
normal use, specifically, recycled by being disposed of or burned for energy recovery. If
the prerequisite definition of secondary material cannot be met, the determination that a
material is a solid waste cannot result in the context of recycling requirements. In
addition, the storage of these chemicals did not rise to the standards established by EPA
regarding “intent” to discard. They were not removed from storage for treatment or
disposal, declared to be waste, nor unable to be used or reprocessed for beneficial use.

prepared by Alice Barr
8/17/01
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Los Alamos National L.aboratory

Office of the Laboratory Counsel

P. O. Box 1663, Mail Stop A187

Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545 Date: October 4, 2000
(505) 667-3766 / FAX: (505) 665-4424 Referto:  10520.9920-01

Susan McMichael, Esq.

New Mexico Environment Department
Assistant General Counsel

Post Office Box 26110

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502

Dear Ms. McMichael:
Subject: Compliance Order 99-03 (1997 Inspection)

The following information is provided in response to your letter of September 26, 2000. For
reference, I have included your numbered request with each response.

1.  Findings in § 21 to support conclusion that the “solid waste” had been characterized as
“non-hazardous” through process knowledge and further, that subsequent analysis
confirmed this analysis. Answer, § 16.

In accordance with 20.4.1.3 NMAC, § 262.11(c)(2), LANL personnel relied on
knowledge of the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of the materials used in
the process which produced the waste, to characterize the waste as nonhazardous. In
this case, the waste was debris from the clean-up of Texaco Long Life Coolant/Anti-
freeze Premix 50/50. The coolant was absorbed on Toxi-dry Absorbent and
vermiculite. Personnel characterized the waste as non-hazardous based on
information provided in the product MSDS. I enclose copies of the Waste Profile
Form # 26775, the Chemical Waste Disposal Request Form, and the MSDS. In
addition I must apologize for a misstatement in our Answer as I now find that the
waste was not sampled after the inspection. However, waste characterization is not at
issue here. The narrative attached to the penalty matrix calculation for this apparent
finding states that there was no hazardous waste present in the > 90-day unit at the
time of the inspection.

2. Findings in Y 24 to support conclusion in question held product previously determined by
knowledge of process to be solid and not hazardous waste. Answer | 19.

In accordance with 20.4.1.3 NMAC, § 262.11(c)(2), personnel relied on knowledge of

the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of the materials used in the process that

Operated by the University of California for the Department of Energy
An Equal Opportunity Employer



Susan McMichael
October 4, 2000
Page - 2

generated the waste to characterize it as nonhazardous. In this case, the waste was
petroleum product mixed with soil. I enclose copies of the Chemical Disposal
Request Form, the analytical results, and the chain-of-custody record.

3.  Findings in Y 34 to support the conclusion that UC made a determination that the material is
nonhazardous. Answer § 29.

In accordance with 20.4.1.3 NMAC, § 262.11(c)(2), Johnson Controls Northern New
Mexico (JCNNM) personnel relied on specific knowledge of the how the waste was
generated to characterize the waste as nonhazardous. JCNNM removed the motor oil
from a backhoe being used by the Environmental Restoration Program. Used motor
oil is either recycled or managed as solid waste at the Laboratory. There is no
documentation of the characterization of this solid waste.

4.  Findings Y1 47 and 48 to support the conclusion that UC determined, based on knowledge
of process, that the waste was non-hazardous. Answer q 43.

In accordance with 20.4.1.3 NMAC, § 262.11(c)(2), personnel relied on knowledge of
the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of the materials used in the process that
generated the waste to characterize the waste as nonhazardous. I enclose a copy of a
memo from Barbara Smith to Tony Grieggs, dated December 18, 1997, which
documents the generator’s knowledge of the waste.

5. Findings in ¥ 57 to support the conclusion that the container in question contained a solid
waste. Answer, § 52..

In accordance with 20.4.1.3 NMAC, § 262.11(c)(2), personnel relied on knowledge of
the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of the materials used in the process that
generated the waste to characterize the waste as nonhazardous. LANL personnel
examined the contents of the drum and determined that the contents had been
generated by JCNNM in conducting maintenance work at the facility, and were solid

waste. I enclose a copy of a memo from Jiri Kubicek to Tony Grieggs, dated
December 19, 1997.

6. Findings in 9 65 and 79, to support conclusion that the individuals identified received
“RCRA refresher or equivalent training” prior to inspection Answer ¥ 60 and 79.

With respect to NMED’s q 65, both Rick Alexander and Julie Meadows had
completed their RCRA refresher course prior to the inspection. According to my
records, the apparent finding was made on July 25, 1997. Mr. Alexander completed
his RCRA refresher training on January 23, 1997, and Ms. Meadows completed hers
on July 16, 1997. I enclose copies of the training records. Complete training records
for the four individuals identified in the paragraph were provided to NMED in the

Operated by the University of California for the Department of Energy
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Ordered Action Documents.

With respect to NMED’s 9§ 84, addressed in the Answer at § 79, Mr. Lewis completed
his RCRA refresher prior to the inspection. According to my records, this apparent
finding was made on July 17, 1997. Mr. Lewis completed his training on July 12,
1997. Ms. Ramsey completed RCRA refresher training on October 19, 1995, and
November 15, 1996. Between those dates, she completed 16 hours of RCRA
compliance training on March 15, 1996, and 40 hours of training in hazardous and
toxic waste management on July 22, 1996. I enclose copies of training records.
Complete training records for the four individuals identified in the paragraph were
provided to NMED in the Ordered Action Documents.

Findings in 4 90, to support conclusion that the container was not hazardous based on
knowledge of process. Answer, [ 85.

In accordance with 20.4.1.3 NMAC, § 262.11(c)(2), JCNNM personnel relied on
specific knowledge of the how the waste was generated to characterize the waste as
nonhazardous. The waste was paint remaining in drums after most of the product was
used painting stripes on roads at the Laboratory. JCNNM relied on the MSDS, a copy
of which is enclosed, to characterized the unused paint as nonhazardous. I also
enclose a copy of the analytical results obtained after the inspection, and a copy of the
Waste Profile Form.

I look forward to meeting with you on November 1, 2000, to discuss potential settlement of this
compliance order. IfI can provide any further information, please let me know.

Sincerely yours,

Zk\“Q)‘:—\\. Lo\/\&u)\w\/g\

Ellen T. Louderbough
Staff Attorney

Cy:

S. Moreno, LC-1, MS A187 (w/o attachments)

B. Osheim, DOE/LAAO, MS A316 (w/ attachments)
T. Fox, NMED, (w/ attachments)

D. Brinkerhoff, NMED (w/ attachments)

LC Records, MS A187

LC File
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State of New Mexico

ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

Harold Runnels Building PETER MAGGIORE
1190 St. Francis Drive, P.O. Box 26110 Secretary
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502-6110 PAUL R RITZMA
Governor Deputy Secretary
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

PHONE: 505-827-2990
FAX: 505-827-1628

September 26,2000

Ms. Ellen T. Louderbough
P.O. Box 1663

Mail Stop A-187

Los Alamos, N.M. 87545-1663

Re: 99-03 [1997 Inspection].
Dear Ms. Louderbough:

This letter confirms our telephone conversation of today. We look forward to meeting
with you in early November to discuss potential settlement of the issues contained in
HRM 99-03 [the 1997 Inspection]. As we discussed, to facilitate and expedite settlement
we are requesting that DOE/UC provide us copies of the documentation identified below.
This documentation was referred to in the answer provided to us by the DOE. We would
appreciate receiving this documentation as soon as possible and several weeks prior to
our settlement meeting to enable us ample opportunity to carefully review the material,
Additionally, please feel free to include any other documentation relied upon in your
answer that may be relevant.

1. Findings in 9 21 to support conclusion that the "solid waste" had been
characterized as "non-hazardous" through process knowledge and further, that subsequent
analysis confirmed this analysis. Answer, §16.

2. Findings inY 24 to support conclusion that the containers in question held product
previously determined by knowledge of process to be solid and not hazardous waste.
Answer, {19.

3. Findings in 9 34 to support the conclusion that UC made a determination that the
material is nonhazardous. Answer, 929.

4. Findings 9947 and 48 to support the conclusion that UC determined, based on
knowledge of process, that the waste was non-hazardous. Answer, 943

5. Findings in 9 57 to support conclusion that the container in question contained a
solid waste. Answer, 952.



6. Findings in 965 and 79, to support conclusion that the individuals identified
received "RCRA refresher or equivalent training" prior to inspection. Answer 9§60 and 79

7. Findings in 990, to support conclusion that the container was not hazardous based
upon knowledge of process. Answer, 985.

We look forward to meeting with you to discuss potential settlement. Please let me know
whether you can meet Wednesday, November 1, 2000.

Sincerely,

%f” Wit s

Susan M. McMichael
Assistant General Counsel

cc: Tannis Fox
Debbie Brinkerhoff
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UNCLASSIFIED

' LABORATORY COUNSEL

AYTA

GENERAL LAW OFFICES

P.O. Box 1663, MS 4187
Los Alamos, NM 87545
(505) 667-3766
Fax: (505) 6654424

FAX TRANSMISSION COVER SHEET

Date:
To:
Fax:
Re:
Sender:

Jaruary 7, 2000
Susan McMichael

CO 99-03 Extension of time docaments
Ellen Lowdcrbough

IF YOU DO NO

YOU SHOULD RECEIVE ( $ ) PAGE(S), INCLUDING THIS COVER SHEET.
T RECEIVE ALL THE PAGES, PLEASE CALL (505) 667-3766.

cy:

Comments:

Susan:

Attached please find the University of Callfornia’s proposed stipulated motion and order for an
extension of time in whick to answer the alleged violations in the New Mexico Environment’s
Compliance Order 9903 relating to the 1997 RCRA Inspection of the Laboratory. It is unclear, at the
moment, if DOE will be joining in the stipulated motion. Please give me a calf after you have kad a

chance 1o review the proposed motion and order; 1can be reached at 6652286,
Ellen

M. Edgett, CRM-4, MS A150
Flle ‘

IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS TELECOPY IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US
IMMEDIATELY BY TELEPHONE AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE TO

US AT THE ADDRESS ABOVE VIA THE UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICES.
THANK YOU.

UNCLASSIFIED
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
IN THE MATTER OF COMPLIANCE ORDER
THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY HRM - 9903 (C0)

AND THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Tnspection)
LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO

NM0890010515

'COME NOW Respondent, the Board of Regents of the Unlversity of California (XJC),
with the cancurrence of Complainant, ard move the Hearing Ofticer to approve an extension
of time until March 15, 2000, within which Respondent may file its answer to the above
captioned Compliance Qrder (CO), and providé documentation of ordered compliance actions,

As grounds for this extension until March 15, 2000, Respondent states that Respondent
received CO 99-03 a week prior to the annual UC holiday closing of Los Alamos National
Laboratory. And because of the annual end of the year closure a number of staff members
necessary (o respond to the alleged flndings in‘the CO were on scheduled leave and therefore
unaveiluble to begin gathering information and documentation NCCESSALY (0 PrEpare an answer.
The extension will allow Respondent to collect documentation to build a complete
administrative record. The interests of justice will be served if Respondent are granted an
extension of time until March 15, 2000 within which to file an answer to the allegations in CO
99-03, and to document ordered compliance actions .

Complainant concurs in this Motion and in the attached Order.

WHEREFORE, Respondents request approval of the attached Stipulated Order by the
Hearing Officer,
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Submitted and Approved:

REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNLA

DATE: BY:
Ellen T. Louderbough

APPROVED:

NEW MEXICO ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

DATE: BY:
Susan M. McMichacl
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
IN THE MATTER OF | ' COMPLIANCE ORDER
THR UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY HRM - 99-03 (C0)

AND THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)
LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO :
NM(890010515 :

Upon the Motion of Respondent, the Regents of the University of California, and with
the concurrence of Complainant the New Meaico Environment Department, it is hereby
stipulated by the parties that the timeframe within which Respondent may. file its Answer to
Compliance Order HRM-99-03, and provide documentation of compliance activities is
extended until March 15, 2000 |

The Hearing Officor having determined that good grounds exist for the Motion of
Respoadents, hereby orders that the 30 day timeframe provided for in the Complisnce Order

within which Respondemts must file their answer and document compliance activities be
extended until March 15, 2000,

Hearing Officer
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DATE: : BY:
Ellen T. Louderbough
APPROVED:
NEW MEXICO ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSFEL
DATE: BY:

Sasan M. McMichacl



) - SENT BY: 1-10- 0 5 9:43AM ; NM ENVIRONMENT DEPT- 5058271833 # 1

State of New Mexico

ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

Harold Runnels Building PETER MAGGIORE
1190 St. Francis Di‘-l‘ve, P.O. Box 26110 Secretary
GARY E. JOANSON Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502-6110 PAUL R. RITZMA
Governor : LDepro: Secretary
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
PHONE, SNJ-327.2890
FAAN: ..101-.9:7.16:;9
Date: - {0 - OO
To:  Dekboie Porinberhoft
vax: __ /-13%3
Pages: _£>__ (including cover sheet)
From: Dusen MQ,M\ Q\’\O.Q,\
NMED, Office of General Counsel ‘
Fax:  (505) 827-1628 Phone:_ /-0127
Comments:

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVDUAL OR ENTITY
TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS
PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC DISCLOSURE UNDER
APPLICABLE LAW,

If the recipient of this message is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent of the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this
message is strictly probibited. If this message has been received in error, please notify us
irmmediately by telephone and destroy the message you received.

FAX TRANSMISS10ON
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

.

IN THE MATTER OF ‘ IR
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY HRM -99-03(CO)

OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)

LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO

NMO0890010515

RESPONDENTS.

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE ORDER

The Secretary of Environment, acting through the Director of the Water and Waste
Management Division of the New Mexico Environment Department (NMED), isiues this
Administrative Compliance Order (Order) to the United States Department of Energy (DOE) and
the Regents of the University of California (UC)(collectively referred to as Respondents),
pursuant to the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Act (HWA), NMSA 1978 § 74-4-10 (Repl.Pamp.

1993).
FINDINGS OF FACT

1. NMED is the agency within the executive branch of the government of the State
of New Mexico charged with the administration and enforcement of the HWA and New Mexico

Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (HWMR), 20 NMAC 4.1.101 through .1109.

2. Respondents are DOE and UC, who notified the Environmental Protection
(’«.*‘(7 A'& ;:
Agency (EPA), of their hazardous waste generation activities on Novemiber-19;:1980.
3. DOE is an agency of the federal government and the owner and co-operator of Los

Alamos National Laboratory (LANL).

- 40181 866N
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4. UC is a public educational institution of the State of California and the
management and operating contractor for LANL pursuant to a contract with DOE, and is a co-
operator of LANL.

5. LANL is principally located in Los Alamos County, New Mexico, approximately
sixty miles northeast of Albuquerque and twenty-five miles northwest of Santa Fe. The LANL
site encompasses approximately forty-three square miles.

6. LANL was chosen as the site for the wartime development of the atomic bomb.
The facility was established as a military reservation, and operations began in 1943. Since 1943,
the primary mission of LANL has been nuclear weapons research and development. In addition,
the facility does work in magnetic and internal fusion, nuclear fission, nuclear safeguards and
security, laser isotope separation, and medical isotope development.

7. In association with the activities identified above, LANL generates, treats and
stores hazardous wastes and mixed hazardous and radioactive wastes. LANL has also applied for
and received a HWA permit from NMED for the storage and management of hazardous wastes
and mixed hazardous and radioactive wastes.

8. Over the past seven years, NMED has issued numerous compliance orders seeking
compliance and civil penalties. In 1992 through 1994, NMED inspected LANL, discovered
violations of HWMR;7, and issued Respondents compliance orders (93-01, 93-02, 93-03, 93-04,
94-09, 94-12), which sought compliance and assessed civil penalties. In 1995, NMED inspected
LANL, discovered violations of HRMW, 20 NMAC 4.1, and issued LANL and DOE
compliance orders (95-03, 95-08), which sought compliance and assessed civil penalties. In
1996, NMED inspected LANL, discovered violations of the HRMW, 20 NMAC 4.1, and issued

a letter of violation.
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9. The violations cited in the enforcement actions described above in paragraph 8,

included, but were not limited to the following: failure to perform hazardous waste

determinations (94-09), failure to keep a hazardous waste container closed (93-04, 94-09), failure

to label hazardous waste containers (93-04, 94-09), failure to provide decontamination
equipment at a less than ninety day storage area (93-04, 94-09), exceeding storage time limits for
hazardous waste (93-04, 94-09), manifesting violations (93-04, 94-09), LDR violations (1993
EPA multi-media), training violations (93-04, 94-09) and accumulation of waste not under
control of the generator ( 94-09).

10. As a result of the compliance orders described above in paragraph 9, Respondents
entered into an administrative order on consent (1992 - 1994) and stipulated final \order (SFO)
(1995) and agreed to a schedule of compliance and the payment of civil penalties.

11. Between July 8, 1997 and December 8, 1997, NMED performed a compliance
evaluation inspection (FY 97 Inspection) of LANL to determine Respondents’ compliance status
with the HWA and HWMR, 20 NMAC 4.1. The FY 97 inspection involved all technical areas
(TA) at LANL. The following violations were discovered at TA-3, TA-18, TA-21, TA-33, TA-
46, TA-54, TA-55 and TA-60.

TA-3, Ion Beam Facility

R

12.  TA-3 generates hazardous waste.

13. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or néar any point of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the

waste, without a permit or interim status.

W
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14. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 2 liter container of hydrochloric acid was
"}df’l'“’& &Q s Ee \ 3 A
found dlscardegmd notwunder the control of the generator at TA-3, lon Beam Facility, Basement

- Loe L — oo so See
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15. In a written memorandum dated December 18, 1997, LANL stated that the 2 liter
container contained hydrochloric acid, a corrosive characteristic waste (D-002).

16. Upon information and belief. the two liter container ha(d not been under
. L

AR =
Iy

Respondents’ control for at least thirty-two days. \

17. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(a)(2)) requires a generator to
mark the date upon which each period of accumulation begins, clearly and visibly, for inspe(;tion‘_
on each container. ;. SR L . \‘

18. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NME[S discovered that 4 containers of
hazardous waste were not marked with the date upon which each accumulation period started.

The containers that were not labeled correctly were: 2 bottles of Red X TV Corona Dope, 1

container of Handy Flux and one 2 liter gas cylinder.

TA-18

19. TA-18 geﬁéfétés ixglzardous waste.
20. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 ( incorporating 40 CFR §§ ‘264.34(a)(4) requires Respondents
to have operable decontamination equipment and water at adequate volume and pressure, unless

[

a demonstration to the Secretary is made that no hazard is posed o
VA) *‘,'“‘\' ped AT .
21. At the time of the FY97 inspection, there was no operable eyewash or water of

it 4. /\" ‘ \'.:
adequate volume available at the less than ninety day storage area in TA-18. LANL personnel

admitted to these facts in writing. Further, LANL personnel stated that there is no policy on the

operation of the eyewash for the less than ninety day storage area.



TA-21
22, TA-21 generétes hazardous waste.
23 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who

generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

T

| 20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and ().

\~

24. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 2 gallon container with
unl&;\;’n ;:oments disc’:a{rded at TA-21, Bldg. 1, east side dock.

25. LANL personnel stated that the container was filled with oily dirt and sludge and
contained no hazardous waste.

26. Upon request by NMED, LANL provided documentation to suppoit its hazardous
waste determination. Upon review, the docgmentation inadequately demonstrated that the
container contains no hazardous waste. H

27. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c) sets forth the requirements
for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of acutely
listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes initially
accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the waste

without a permit or interim status.

28. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found two 1 gallon containers

o

discarﬁgd ahd not'under the control of the generator for an unknown period of time at TA-21,

Bldg. 59. L \};;a\“@\‘ k (,‘,;".
29.  The two 1 gallon containers contained a listed hazardous waste, 111
Trichloroethylene. %" TC N
tine
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30. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 55 gallon container, half full of Titanium

B ol W el b
55 IO j Sl

crystals was found dise ded and not u’r/{dfef the control of the generator at TA-21, JCI-ESA/TSC,
basement. B

31. Titanium crystals are reactive and characteristic hazardous waste (D003).

32. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c). ottt

33. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 5 gallon container, 2/3 full of

‘ e, A0
unknown contents, discarded at TA-21, Shed 402.
34. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respéﬁdents provided NMED.\no

documentation demonstrating that the 5 gallon container contained no hazardous waste.

TA-33 - Mobile Laser Staging Area

~

35. TA-33 generates hazardous waste.
36. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c). |
37. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found “waste lead solder” discarded
for an unknown period of time at TA-33, Bldg. 39. OQIT/
38. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the “waste lead solder” contains no hazardous waste.
39.  Upon information and belief, the “waste lead solder” contained lead and is a

characteristic hazardous waste. Further, LANL stated in a written memorandum, that after the

NMED inspector noted the violation, it corrected the violation.
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40. At the time of the FY97 inspection, at least 16 containers of photo processing

2T
\;/\JQ’/ ‘ o
chemicals were discarded for at least ten months at TA-33, Bldg. 114, Room 125. v
41. Respondents’ hazardous waste determination regarding these containers was

inadequate and did not demonstrate to NMED that the photo processing chemicals contained no
hazardous waste.
TA-41

42. TA-41 generates hazardous waste.

43, 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the
waste without a permit or interim status.

44. Based on information and belief, at the time of the FY97 inspection, four 5 gallon
carboys containing naphtha and mineral spirits were found abandoned at TA-41, Bldg. 30, Room
264.

TA-46

45. TA-46 has a hazardous waste satellite storage area.

46. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34.(c)(1)(1)) which incorporates
40 CFR § 265.173(a) requires containers holding hazardous waste to be closed during storage,
except when necessary to add or remove waste.

47. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 5 gallon container of

hazardous waste open at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Room B-6.



48.  The 5 gallon container was marked with words stating that it contained 3% HCL
with a trace of mercury.

49. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(b)) provides that a generator
who accumulates hazardous waste for more than ninety days is an operator of a storage facility
and is subject to the requirements of 40 CFR Part 264 and 40 CFR Part 265 and permit
requirements under 40 CFR Part 270.

50. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found at least 21 containers of
hazardous materials discarded and stored without a permit at TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103. The
following containers were as follows: one 2 gallon of acetic acid (D002), one % gallon
hydrochloric acid (D002), one 500 ml of hydroflouric acid (D002), one “ gallon n\itric acid
(D002), one ¥: gallon sulfuric acid (D002), one 1/3 gallon nitric acid (D002), four 500 ml bottles
of outdated Eastman Kodak White Reflectance Coating (D001 containing Barium Sulfate and
ethanol with a flash point of 72° F), one 500 ml bottle of Kodak White Reflectance Paint, one
200 ml bottle of trifluoroacetic acid (D002). one tube of Iodo acetylene or CH3I (D003), 1 jar of
distilled mercury (D009), one 200 ml bottle of acetone (F003), one 1 gallon liquid Versatec
(xerox toner premix Type M) (D001 with a flash point of 102° F), one 1/3 full can of Methly
Alcohol (D001), one 1 gallon container Ancamine T-1, 1 gas cylinder of borazine (B3N3H6), 1
small tube of HBNH3 (D003), and 1 container of H3B.N(CH3)3.

51. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents had abandoned these 21
containers since possibly 1991 and the storage area did not meet the requirements of a less than

ninety day storage area and was not permitted to store hazardous waste for long term.
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52. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR 262.11 (a)(b) and (c).

53. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents had failed to make a hazardous
waste determination on 21 containers, as described in paragraph 50, discarded since possibly
1991.

54. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the 21 containers contained no hazardous waste.

55. At the time of the FY 97 inspection, Respondents failed to determine if a
container of Dippit 646 was hazardous waste when discarded at TA-46, Bldg. 208\, under the
tube canopy.

56.  Respondents failed to determine if Dippit 646 was a hazardous waste when it was
abandoned. Respondents have since stated that Dippit 646 is a hazardous waste and it is
indicated as such in the MSDS.

57. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 55 gallon container with C)J"NQ _
unknown contents abandoned at TA-46, Bldg. 31, south side. ;z,j/

58. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the abandoned 55 gallon container contained no hazardous
waste.

59. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found two 1 liter abandoned
containers with unknown contents at TA-46, Bldg. 30, Room 106.

60. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no

documentation demonstrating that the two 1 liter containers contained no hazardous waste.
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61. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any poin_t of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the
waste, without a permit or interim status.

62. At the time of the FY97 inspection, at least 5 containers with regulated hazardous
wastes. methyl ethyl ketone (D035, FO05) and toluene (F006), were found abandoned and not
under the control of the operator in the laboratorv hood at TA-46, Bldg. 41, Room 105.

TA-50

63.  TA- 50 generates hazardous waste. \

64. Respondents’ Permit Module Il F. and 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR
§ 264.16(c)) requires RCRA facility personnel to take part in an annual review of initial training
as required under §264.16(a).

65S. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility training records revealed
that the following individuals had not received the annual refresher training required for facility
personnel at TA-50: Paul Abercrombie, Rle Alexander, Julie Meadows and Robert Gonzales.

TA-53
66.  TA-53 generates hazardous waste.
67. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who

generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

10
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68. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found three 500ml containers with
unknown contents, labeled pending analysis and dated 9-11-96 at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126
with containers labeled hazardous waste.

69. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the container contained no hazardous waste.

TA- 54 - Permitted Hazardous Waste Storage Area

70. TA-54 is a permitted hazardous waste storage area at LANL.

71. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c). \

72. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a container of Cyanuric Fluoride, was not
adequately determined to be a hazardous waste and was inaccurately labeled as “non-regulated”
at TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69, LP6.

73. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR 262.34.(c)(1)(ii)) requires containers
holding hazardous waste to be marked with the words “hazardous waste” or other words that
identify the contents of the container.

74. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a container of Cyanuric Fluoride, was
characterized improperly and inaccurately labeled as “non-regulated” at TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69,
LPé6.

75.  In a written memorandum dated July 10, 1997, the Material Safety Data Sheet
(MSDS) stated that the material is a “hazardous waste for it’s characteristic of reactivity.” A

LANL employee also informed NMED that the container was “mislabeled” and “should have

been labeled D003 for cyanide.”

11
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76.  Respondents’ hazardous waste storage permit for TA-54 prohibits the storage of
waste which is restricted from land disposal unless such container is clearly marked to identify its
contents and the date each period of accumulation begins in P;rmit Module III.B.3.b, which
incorporates the requirements of 40 CFR § 268.50 (a)(2)X(1).

77. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of the facility inspection logs
indicate that numerous mixed waste containers within the permitted storage area had faded,
illegible, and incomplete labels at TA-54, Area L.

78. At the time of the FY97 inspection. mixed waste storage shafts #36 and #37 were
not marked or labeled in a manner which clearly identifies the contents of containers in the
storage shafts as mixed waste at TA-54, Area L. \

79. 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(1)(i1)) requires the
generator to notify the treatment or storage facility in writing that the waste being shipped does
not meet the applicable treatment standards set forth in subpart D and therefore must include the
following information on the notification; the waste constituents that the treater must monitor
and whether the waste is a nonwastewater or wastewater treatability group.

80. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility manifest numbers
95940157, 95940159, 95940158, 95940145 and 95940141 and their associated Land Disposal
Restriction (LDR) notices revealed that the appropriate waste constituents were not marked on
the LDR notices at TA-54.

81. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility manifest numbers 97013
and 97016 and their associated LDR revealed that the proper treatability group was not marked

on the LDR notices at TA-54.
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TA-55
82. TA-55 generates hazardous waste.
83. Respondents’ hazardous waste storage permit requires that facility personnel

obtain annual refresher training , incorporating 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (40 CFR § 264.16(c)).

84. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility training records revealed
that the following four individuals had not received the annual refresher training required for
facility personnel at TA-55: Basil J. Lewis, Chester A. Smith Jr., Susan Ramsey and Willard E.
Williams.

85. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using meth«zds specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

86. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc”
Component B was incorrectly determined to be non-regulated and was found labeled as non-
regulated at the interim storage area at TA-55, Bldg. 0, outside of Bldg. 4.

87.  The 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc” is an ignitable hazardous waste which has a
flash point of 137° F and was identified in the MSDS sheet.

TA-60

88.  TA-60 generates hazardous waste.

89. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any perscn who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).
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90. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 55 gallon container of yellow paint waste
was found open and not stored correctly for possible hazardous waste at TA-60, Bldg. 131,
outside storage building.

91. Based on the history of noncompliance noted in Paragraphs 8 through 10 above,

and the violations noted in Paragraphs 12 through 90 above, Respondents are high priority

violators of 20 NMAC. 4.1

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

I. " Respondents are each a “person™ as defined at §74-4-3.K. of HWA and §101 of
the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Management Regulations at 20 NMAC 4.1.101 through
.1109, which incorporates, with a few exceptions, federal regulation at 40 CFR Pa{ts 260 through
270.

2. Respondents manage "hazardous waste" as defined at §74-4-3.1. of HWA, and 20
NMAC 4.1.101, which incorporates, with few exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

3. Respondent DOE is an “owner” and a “co-operator” of an “existing hazardous
waste management facility” as defined at 20 NMAC 4.1.101 which incorporates with a few
exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

4. Respondent UC is an “operator” of an “existing hazardous waste management
facility” as defined at 20 NMAC 4.1.101, which incorporates with a few exceptions, federal
regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

5. Respondents engage in the “treatment”, “storage” and “disposal” of hazardous
waste as defined at §74-4-3.N. and Q., respectively, of the HWA, and 20 NMAC 4.1.100, which

incorporates, with a few exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR § 260.10.

14



COUNTS 1 THROUGH 6: ACCUMULATION OF HAZARDOUS WASTE NOT UNDER
CONTROL OF GENERATOR [TA-3, TA-21, TA-41, TA-46, TA-53]

6. Paragraphs | through 16 (TA-3), 27 through 31 (TA-21), 42 through 44 (TA-41),
61 through 62 (TA-46), and 64 through 67 (TA-53) are hereby incorporated by reference.

7. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34(c)(1)) by
discarding a 2 liter container of hazardous waste by storage in lieu of disposal, which was not

under the control of the generator, at TA-3, lon Beam Facility, Basement Laboratory.

~
8. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR ‘;% 9\0\ . ??L\ )

§ 262.34(c)(1)) by discarding two 1 gallon containers of characteristic hazardous waste by
storage in lieu of disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA\ZI, Bldg. 59.
9. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34(c)(1))
by discarding a 55 gallon container of reactive hazardous waste by storage in lieu of disposal,
which was not under the control of the generator at TA-21, JCI-ESA/TSC, basement.
10. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1))

by discarding four 5 gallon containers of characteristic hazardous waste by storage in lieu of ~
/e
disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA-41, Bldg. 30, Room 264. )3?

11.  Respondents have violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR o
§262.34(c)(1)) by discarding at least 5 containers of listed and characteristic hazardous waste by /\? 6 J\

T
storage in lieu of disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA-46, Bldg. 41, )K“‘ ;

LAVLL 577 - aondroe

Room 105. S
12.  Respondents have violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34 (c) .

(1)) by discarding three 500 ml containers of possible mixed waste which was not under the f%() Se
. '}k./

[
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control of the operator at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126.

COUNT 7: FAILURE TO MARK ACCUMULATION DATE [TA-3]
13. Péragraphs 1 through 18 are hereby incorporatcd by reference. _\ (6 QO} _ul
14. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34 (a)(2)){\‘? VO 4
by failing to place the accumulation start date on four containers of hazardous waste in the less
than ninety day storage area located at TA-3. [on Beam Facility.

COUNT 8: NO OPERABLE DECONTAMINATION EQUIPMENT [TA-18]

15. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 19 through 21 are hereby incorporated by reference.
16. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §§ 262.34 (a)(4)) :)_\

by failing to have operable decontamination equipment or water of sufficient lent pressure an

O-\
LANCHS (0 d%%%

volume available at the less than ninety day storage area at TA-18. W"P\
@ L \o—é Q/V‘m”)/\

COUNT 9: INADEQUATE HAZARDOUS WASTE DETERMINATION [TA- 21]

17.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 22 through 26 are hereby incorporated by reference. 3 L{
//7 « w‘\
18. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) by ﬂ%w‘\ﬁ

. A 0N o] deXz. ﬁ),m 0 8 J“TU
COUNTS 10 THROUGH 20: FAILURE TO PERFORM HAZARDOUS YL

WASTE DETERMINATION [TA-21, TA-33, TA-46, TA-53, TA-54, TA-55, TA-60] L/i\}"g
19.  Paragraphs 1 through 11, 32 through 34 (TA-21), 35 through 41 (TA-33), 52
through 60 (TA-46), 64 through 67 (TA-53), 68 through 70 (TA-54), 83 through 85 (TA-55),
and 87 through 88 (TA-60) are hereby incorporated by reference.
20. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous waste determination on the unknown contents of an abandoned 5

¢ lﬂ%'ﬁ”bfb’
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gallon container at TA-21, Shed 402.

\"\\‘
5

21. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
(5

failing to perform a hazardous waste determination on waste lead solder at TA-33, Bldg.39. ?\Jj ¥
. ‘ l'i -
¢ \3/ 22. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

, J>’> failing to perform a hazardous determination on discarded photo processing chemicals in TA-33,

o3 Ty
Bldg. 114, Room 125. o, -
. i3

&}XQ 7 23. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

&

failing to perform a hazardous determination on 21 various containers discarded since 1991 in ' "(0\
QS

TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103.

)S'\'\O\ 24. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §2\62.1 1) by -/
4 : ~

Y failing to perform a hazardous determination on a container of Dippit 646 discarded at TA-46, gu

Blég. 208, under the tube canopy. W
U"j Mg, Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a discarded 55 gallon container with unknoyt} 5 ,—)
contents at TA-46, Bldg. 31, south side.
26.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on two 1 liter abandoned containers with unknown
contents at TA-46, Bldg. 30, Room 106.
27.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on three 500 mi containers with unknown contents,
at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126. G
28. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

failing to perform an adequate hazardous determination on a container of Cyanuric Fluoride at

17
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TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69, LP6.

29. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc” Component
B at TA-55, Bldg. 0, outside of Bldg. 4.

30. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a 55 gallon container of yellow paint waste at
TA-60, Bldg. 131, outside storage building.

COUNT 21: OPEN CONTAINER [TA-46]

31. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 45 through 438 are hereby incorporated by reference.

32. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR\
262.34(c)(1)(i)) by failing to keep a hazardous waste container closed in the satellite
accumulation area at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Room B-6.

COUNT 22: WASTES STORED IN EXCESS OF 90 DAY STORAGE LIMIT {TA-46]

33. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 49 through 51 are hereby incorporated by reference.

34. Respondents‘violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(b)) by
exceeding the ninety day storage time limit on at least 21 containers of discarded hazardous
waste without a permit at TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103.

COUNT 23: LACK OF ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING FOR PERSONNEL [TA-50]

35.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 61 through 63 are hereby incorporated by reference.

36.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR § 264.16(c)) or,
alternatively, 20 NMAC 4.1.600 (incorporating 40 CFR 265.16 (d)(4)) by failing to ensure
annual refresher training is taken by personnel at TA-50 as required in the Hazardous Waste

Storage Permit Module ILF.

18
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COUNT 24: IMPROPER LABELING [TA-54]

37. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 71 through 73 are hereby incorporated by reference.
38. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34
(c)(1)(i1)) by failing to properly label a container of reactive hazardous waste at TA-54, Area L,

Bldg. 69. Row 4, LP6.

COUNT 25: IMPROPER LABELING/LAND DISPOSAL RESTRICTION WASTE

[TA-54]

39. Paragraphs | through 11 and 74 through 76 are hereby incorporated by reference.

40. Respondents violated the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit Module\III.B.3.b and
20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR §268.50(a)(2)(i)) by failing to maintain adequate
labels on numerous containers of mixed waste within the permitted storage area of TA-54, Area
L.

4]1.  Respondents violated the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit Module III.B.3.b and
20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR 268.50 CFR §268.50 (a)(2)(i)) by failing to mark or
label the contents and the accumulation start date on the storage shafts #36 and #37 at TA-54,

Area L.

COUNT 26 AND 27: VIOLATIONS OF LDR NOTICES [TA-54]

42.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 77 through 79 are hereby incorporated by reference.
43, Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR §268.7(a)(1)(ii))

by failing to mark the proper waste constituents on LDR notices for five manifests at TA-54.
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44, Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(1)(11))
by failing to mark the proper treatability group on LDR notices for manifest Numbers 97013 and

97016, dated 2/27/97, at TA-54.

COUNT 28: LACK OF ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING FOR PERSONNEL

[TA-55]
45. Paragraphs | through 11 and 80 through 82 are hereby incorporated by reference.
46.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR § 264.16(c)) or.
alternatively, 20 NMAC 4.1.600 (incorporating 40 CFR 265.16 (d)(4)) tailing to ensure that
annual refresher training is taken by personnel at TA-55 as required in the Hazardous Waste
Storage Permit Module [L.F.

CIVIL PENALTY

l. Section 74-4—10 of the HWA authorizes the assessme.nt of a civil penalty of up to
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per day for each violation of the HWA or the regulations
promulgated thereunder. Complainant hereby assesses a civil penalty of One Million One
Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Six Dollars ($1,168,766), against
Respondents. The penality is based on the seriousness of the violations and the lack of good faith
efforts on the part of Respondents to comply with the applicable requirements, and any economic
benefit resulting from noncompliance accruing to Respondents and such other matters as justice
may require. The penalty amount is calculated pursuant to the NMED's Civil Penalty Policy.

The penalty for each violation is:

VIOLATION AMOUNT
17 Hazardous waste not under control of generator $15,525 A ] S0
98  Hazardous waste not under control of generator $9,300 7 | yyo
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110
q11
112
14
116
118
920
121
122
123
q24
125
126
127
q28
129
{30
32
q34
136
138

q 40

Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator

No accumulation start date on containers

No operable eyewash

Inadequate hazardous waste determination made
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to keep a container closed

Illegal storage past 90 days

Lack of annual refresher training

Failure to properly label

Failure to properly label

21

$145,000
§27,675
$27,675
$30,983
$15,525
$4,500
$2,400
$2,400
$6,000
$54,600
$200,700
$£54,600
$2,400
$2,400
$34,425
$54,600
$6,000
$54,600
$1,125
$200,700
$54,600
$54,600

$27,675

23,140

2., 140

o, 4=0
720 —
), 720

), 720

H, g00

43,bE0
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141 Failure to properly label $21,218 -

943 Failure to mark the appropriate waste codes on LDRs $1,470 7D

144  Failure to mark the treatability group on LDRs | $1,470 !, 260 /D5
945 Lack of annual refresher training $54,600 22 . / Y

\ _
b5, 45D
Payment shall be made to the State of New Mexico Hazardous Waste Emergency Fund by s _
é £ L{, (1':‘1) &)
certified check, bank draft, or other guaranteed negotiable instrument, and mailed to or hand - Als DO

delivered to Karen Breslin, Office of General Counsel, New Mexico Environment Departme t(p 2% ) 4 L,,
P.O. Box 26110, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502.

SCHEDULE OF COMPLIANCE

\

2. Based on the foregoing Findings and Conclusions, Respondents are ordered to
comply with the following Schedule of Compliance:

A. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall
perform adequate hazardous waste determinations for all wastes
identified in paragraph 12. Respondents shall provide documentation of
analyses or proper determination and disposition.

B. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall
provide documentation of measures taken to gain appropriate control
over the hazardous waste stored for an indefinite periow ¢ time after a
project ends or funding disappears, and in particular the wasies identified

"in paragraphs 11, 22, 23, 26, 28, and 34.
C. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall

provide documentation that required annual refresher training has been
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provided for facility personnel identified in paragraph 36 and 46 and
provide a plan to prevent this violation from happening in the future.

D. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Ordg_r, provide a copy of the
plan put into effect to correct the eye wash violation in paragraph 16.

E. Within 10 calendar days from receipt of this Order, ensure that containers
described in paragraph 40 are properiy labeled and properly label the
mixed waste storage Ashafts with appropriate signs to identify contents of
the shafts identified in paragraph 41, and provide documentation of same
within 30 calendar days.

F. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide
documentation of proper storage or disposal of all discarded or
abandoned materials/wastes identified in paragraphs 23, 24, 25, and 28.

G. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide
documentation of corrections to the deficiencies on all LDR’s noted in
paragraphs 43 and 44.

H. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide a plan to
adequately address testing and disposal of unknowns. Paragraph 18 was
not tested or handled correctly following the inspection.

Compliance with the violations noted in paragraphs 7, 8, 9, 10, 14, 20, 21, 22, 27, 29, 30, 32, and
38 were appropriately addressed by the Respondent at the time of the inspection or within an
appropriate timeframe. No further action is required on these violations.

NOTICE

3. If Respondents fail to timely comply with the Schedule of Compliance or if
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Respondents elect not to comply with the schedule of Compliance and to challenge it as set forth

below, the Secretary may assess additional civil penalties of not more than twenty-five thousand

dollars ($25,000) for each day of continued noncompliance pursuant to §74-4-10.C. of the HWA.

4.

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO ANSWER AND REQUEST A HEARING

Respondents have a right to request a hearing pursuant to §74-4-10.H. of the HWA

and 20 NMAC 1.5.200 of NMED’s Adjudicatory Procedures by filing a written request for

Hearing with the Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of this Order. The

Request for Hearing shall include an Answer. The Answer shall:

5.

A. clearly and directly admit or deny each of the factual assertions contained
in the Compliance Order/Determination; but where the Respondent/Complainant
has no knowledge of a particular factual assertion and so states, the} assertion may
be denied on basis. Any allegation of the Compliance Order/Determination not
specifically denied shall be deemed admitted;

B. indicate any affirmative defenses upon which the
Respondent/Complainant intends to rely. Any affirmative defense not asserted in
the Request for Hearing, except a defense asserting lack of subject matter
jurisdiction, shall be deemed waived;

C. be signed under oath or affirmation that the information contained therein
is to the best of the signers knowledge believed to be true and correct; and

D. have a copy of the compliance Order/Determination attached.

A hearing upon the issues raised by the Order and Answer shall be held upon the

request of the Respondents. NMED’s Adjudicatory Procedures shall govern all hearing and pre-

hearing procedures. Respondents may contact the Hearing Clerk for a copy of these regulations.
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The Hearing Clerk’s name and address is:
Tamella Lakes, Hearing Clerk

P.O. Box 26110

1190 St. Francis Drive

Harold Runnels Building, N4084

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502

(505) 827-2842

FINALITY OF ORDER

6. This Order shall become final unless Respondents file a written Request for
Hearing and Answer within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Order. Failure by the
Respondents to file an Answer constitutes an admission of all facts alleged in the Order and a
waiver of Respondent’s right to a hearing under §74-4-10 of the HWA.

SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

7. Whether or not Respondents file an AnsWer and Request for Hearing,
Respondents may confer with Complainant concerning settlement. A request for a settlement
conference does not extend the thirty (30) day period during which the Answer and Request for
Hearing must be submitted. The settlement conference may be pur;ued as an alternative to, or
simultaneously with, the hearing proceedings. Respondents may appear at the settlement

conference or by represented by counsel.
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8. Any settlement reached by the parties shall be approved by a stipulated final Order
of the Secretary of NMED pursuant to the conditions set forth in 20 NMAC 1.5.601. The
issuance of such an Order shall serve to resolve all issues raisgd in the Order, shall be final and
binding on all parties to the Order, and shall not be appealable.

9. To explore the possibility of setilement in this matter, contact Ms. Debby
Brinkerhoff of the Environment Department. P.O. Box 26110, 1220 St. Francis Drive, Santa Fe,
NM 87501, telephone number (505) 827-1308.

TERMINATION

10. Compliance with the requirements of this Order does not relieve Respondents of
their obligation to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. This Order shall terminate
\

when Respondents certify that all requirements of the Order have been completed and NMED

has approved sucmﬁcation, or when the Secretary approves a stipulated final order.

/4 Date: DK&MM ](1 )?ﬁ
AN U —=" {
Gregrgzg/ J. Lewis, Director

Water and Waste Management Division

By:




~, %

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that the foregoing Administrative Compliance Order was mailed postage

prepaid as follows on this l g'H’W day of December, 1999 to the following:

Via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested:

Mr. David A. Gurule, Area Manager

U.S. Department of Energy

Los Alamos Area Office

528 35th Street, MS A316 \
Los Alamos, NM 87544

Dr. John C. Browne, Director
Los Alamos National Laboratory
P.O. Box 1663, MS A100

Los Alamos, NM 87545

laa S tox
Attorney NMED/OGC

Respondents are required to comply with all terms and conditions of its HWA permit. NMSA
1978, Section 74-4-10 of the HWA and 20 NMAC 4.1.900 (incorporating 40 CFR 270.4).
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FACT SUMMARY SHEET

The Hazardous and Radioactive Materials Bureau inspected Los Alamos National
Laboratory for five months during 1997. This was called a “wall to wall” inspection, the
first of its kind by HRMB at Los Alamos Laboratory. Due to the nature of the inspection,
a large number of violations were discovered. All of these violations were repeat
violations, this means that the same type of problems were found during previous
inspections. The total penalty for all these violations is $1,168,766.

Twenty nine violations were found ranging from 1 violation of inoperable
decontamination equipment (eyewash), 1 violation of missing accumulation start date on
container labels, 1 violation for failure to keep a container closed, 1 violation for illegal
storage past 90 days, 1 violation for failure to properly mark the appropriate waste codes
on Land Disposal Restriction Notices, 1 violation for failure to mark the treatability
group on Land Disposal Restriction Notices, 2 violations for lack of annual refresher
training, 3 violations of failure to properly label, 6 violations of hazardous waste not
under the control of the generator and 12 violations of failure to determine if the waste
was hazardous.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

IN THE MATTER OF ,
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY HRM -99-03(CO)

OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)

LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO

NM0890010515

RESPONDENTS.

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE ORDER

The Secretary of Environment, acting through the Director of the Water and Waste
Management Division of the New Mexico Environment Department (NMED), isiues this
Administrative Compliance Order (Order) to the United States Department of Energy (DOE) and
the Regents of the University of California (UC)(collectively referred to as Respondents),
pursuant to the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Act (HWA), NMSA 1978 § 74-4-10 (Repl.Pamp.
1993).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. NMED is the agency within the executive branch of the government of the State
of New Mexico charged with the administration and enforcement of the HWA and New Mexico
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (HWMR), 20 NMAC 4.1.101 through .1109.

2. Respondents arec DOE and UC, who notified the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA), of their hazardous waste generation activities on November 19, 1980.

3. DOE is an agency of the federal government and the owner and co-operator of Los

Alamos National Laboratory (LANL).
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4. UC is a public educational institution of the State of California and the
management and operating contractor for LANL pursuant to a contract with DOE, and 1s a co-
operator of LANL.

5. LANL is principally located in Los Alamos County, New Mexico, approximately
sixty miles northeast of Albuquerque and twenty-five miles northwest of Santa Fe. The LANL
site encompasses approximately forty-three square miles.

0. LANL was chosen as the site for the wartime development of the atomic bomb.
The facility was established as a military reservation, and operations began in 1943. Since 1943,
the primary mission of LANL has been nuclear weapons research and development. In addition,
the facility does work in magnetic and internal fusion, nuclear fission, nuclear safq\guards and
security, laser isotope separation, and medical isotope development.

7. In association with the activities identified above, LANL generates, treats and
stores hazardous wastes and mixed hazardous and radioactive wastes. LANL has also applied for
and received a HWA permit from NMED for the storage and management of hazardous wastes
and mixed hazardous and radioactive wastes.

8. Over the past seven years, NMED has issued numerous compliance orders seeking
compliance and civil penalties. In 1992 through 1994, NMED inspected LANL, discovered
violations of HWMR-7, and issued Respondents compliance orders (93-01, 93-02, 93-03, 93-04,
94-09, 94-12), which sought compliance and assessed civil penalties. In 1995, NMED inspected
LANL, discovered violations of HRMW, 20 NMAC 4.1, and issued LANL and DOE
compliance orders (95-03, 95-08), which sought compliance and assessed civil penalties. In
1996, NMED inspected LANL, discovered violations of the HRMW, 20 NMAC 4.1, and issued

a letter of violation.
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9. The violations cited in the enforcement actions described above in paragraph 8,
included, but were not limited to the following: failure to perform hazardous waste
determinations (94-09), failure to keep a hazardous waste container closed (93-04, 94-09), failure
to label hazardous waste containers (93-04, 94-09), failure to provide decontamination
equipment at a less than ninety day storage area (93-04, 94-09), exceeding storage time limits for
hazardous waste (93-04, 94-09), manifesting violations (93-04, 94-09), LDR violations (1993
EPA multi-media), training violations (93-04, 94-09) and accumulation of waste not under
control of the generator ( 94-09).

10. As a result of the compliance orders described above in paragraph 9, Respondents
entered into an administrative order on consent (1992 - 1994) and stipulated ﬁnaliorder (SFO)
(1995) and agreed to a schedule of compliance and the payment of civil penalties.\

11. Between July 8, 1997 and December 8, 1997, NMED performed a compliance
evaluation inspection (FY 97 Inspection) of LANL to determine Respondents’ compliance status
with the HWA and HWMR, 20 NMAC 4.1. The FY 97 inspection involved all technical areas
(TA) at LANL. The following violations were discovered at TA-3, TA-18, TA-21, TA-33, TA-

46, TA-54, TA-55 and TA-60.

TA-3, JIon Beam Facility

12. TA-3 generates hazardous waste.

13. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the

waste, without a permit or interim status.



14. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 2 liter container of hydrochloric acid was
found discarded and not under the control of the generator at TA-3, Ion Beam Facility, Basement

Laboratory.

15. In a written memorandum dated December 18, 1997, LANL stated that the 2 liter
container contained hydrochloric acid, a corrosive characteristic waste (D-002).

16. Upon information and belief, the two liter container had not been under
Respondenis’ control for at least thirty-two days.

17. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(a)(2)) requires a generator to
mark the date upon which each period of accumulation begins, clearly and visibly, for inspection
on each container. \

A

18. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED discovered that 4 containers of
hazardous waste were not marked with the date upon which each accumulation period started.
The containers that were not labeled correctly were: 2 bottles of Red X TV Corona Dope, |
container of Handy Flux and one 2 liter gas cylinder.

TA-18

19. TA-18 generates hazardous waste.

20. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 ( incorporating 40 CFR §§ 264.34(a)(4) requires Respondents
to have operable decontamination equipment and water at adequate volume and pressure, unless
a demonstration to the Secretary is made that no hazard is posed.

21. At the time of the FY97 inspection, there was no operable eyewash or water of
adequate volume available at the less than ninety day storage area in TA-18. LANL personnel
admitted to these facts in writing. Further, LANL personnel stated that there is no policy on the

operation of the eyewash for the less than ninety day storage area.



TA-21

22. TA-21 generates hazardous waste.

23. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 26.'2.1 1) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

24. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 2 gallon container with
unknown contents discarded at TA-21, Bldg. 1, east side dock.

25. LANL personnel stated that the container was filled with oily dirt and sludge and
contained no hazardous waste.

26. Upon request by NMED, LANL provided documentation to suppo\rt its hazardous
waste determination. Upon review, the documentation inadequately demonstrated that the
container contains no hazardous waste.

27. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c) sets forth the requirements
for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of acutely
listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes initially
accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the waste
without a permit or interim status.

28. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found two 1 gallon containers

discarded and not under the control of the generator for an unknown period of time at TA-21,

Bldg. 59.
29. The two 1 gallon containers contained a listed hazardous waste, 111
Trichloroethylene.



30. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 35 gallon container, half full of Titanium

crystals was found discarded and not under the control of the generator at TA-21, JCI-ESA/TSC,

basement.

31. Titanium crystals are reactive and characteristic hazardous waste (D003).

32. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (¢).

33. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 5 gallon container, 2/3 full of
unknown contents, discarded at TA-21, Shed 402.

34. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED \no
documentation demonstrating that the 5 gallon container contained no hazardous waste.

TA-33 - Mobile Laser Staging Area

35. TA-33 generates hazardous waste.

36. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)}(b) and (c).

37. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found “waste lead solder” discarded
for an unknown period of time at TA-33, Bldg. 39.

38. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the “waste lead solder” contains no hazardous waste.

39.  Upon information and belief, the “waste lead solder” contained lead and is a
characteristic hazardous waste. Further, LANL stated in a written memorandum, that after the

NMED inspector noted the violation, it corrected the violation.



40. At the time of the FY97 inspection, at least 16 containers of photo processing
chemicals were discarded for at least ten months at TA-33, Bldg. 114, Room 125.

41. Respondents’ hazardous waste determination rcgarding these containers was
inadequate and did not demonstrate to NMED that the photo processing chemicals contained no
hazardous waste.

TA-41

42. TA-41 generates hazardous waste.

43. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation whc\ere wastes

\
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the
waste without a permit or interim status.

44. Based on information and belief, at the time of the FY97 inspection, four 5 gallon
carboys containing naphtha and mineral spirits were found abandoned at TA-41, Bldg. 30, Room
264.

TA-46

45.  TA-46 has a hazardous waste satellite storage area.

46. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34.(c)(1)(i)) which incorporates
40 CFR § 265.173(a) requires containers holding hazardous waste to be closed during storage,
except when necessary to add or remove waste.

47. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 5 gallon container of

hazardous waste open at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Room B-6.



48. The 5 gallon container was marked with words stating that it contained 3% HCL
with a trace of mercury.

49. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(b)) provides that a generator
who accumulates hazardous waste for more than ninety days is an operator of a storage facility
and is subject to the requirements of 40 CFR Part 264 and 40 CFR Part 265 and permit
requirements under 40 CFR Part 270.

50. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found at least 21 containers of
hazardous materials discarded and stored without a permit at TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103. The
following containers were as follows: one 2 gallon of acetic acid (D002), one % gallon
hydrochloric acid (D002), one 500 ml of hydroflouric acid (D002), one ¥4 gallon n{tric acid
(D002), one ¥ gallon sulfuric acid (D002), one 1/3 gallon nitric acid (D002), four 500 ml bottles
of outdated Eastman Kodak White Reflectance Coating (D001 containing Barium Sulfate and
ethanol with a flash point of 72° F), one 500 ml bottle of Kodak White Reflectance Paint, one
200 ml bottle of trifluoroacetic acid (D002), one tube of Iodo acetylene or CH3I (D003), 1 jar of
distilled mercury (D009), one 200 ml bottle of acetone (F003), one 1 gallon liquid Versatec
(xerox toner premix Type M) (D001 with a flash point of 102° F), one 1/3 full can of Methly
Alcohol (D001), one 1 gallon container Ancamine T-1, 1 gas cylinder of borazine (B3N3H6), 1
small tube of HBNH3 (D003), and 1 container of H3B.N(CH3)3.

51.  Atthe time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents had abandoned these 21
containers since possibly 1991 and the storage area did not meet the requirements of a less than

ninety day storage area and was not permitted to store hazardous waste for long term.
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52. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR 262.11 (a)(b) and (c).

53. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents had failed to make a hazardous
waste determination on 21 containers, as described in paragraph 50, discarded since possibly
1991.

54. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the 21 containers contained no hazardous waste.

55. At the time of the FY 97 inspection, Respondents failed to determine if a
container of Dippit 646 was hazardous waste when discarded at TA-46, Bldg. 20§, under the

\
tube canopy.

56.  Respondents failed to determine if Dippit 646 was a hazardous waste when it was
abandoned. Respondents have since stated that Dippit 646 is a hazardous waste and it is
indicated as such in the MSDS.

57. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 55 gallon container with
unknown contents abandoned at TA-46, Bldg. 31, south side.

58. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the abandoned 55 gallon container contained no hazardous
waste.

59. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found two 1 liter abandoned
containers with unknown contents at TA-46, Bldg. 30, Room 106.

60. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no

documentation demonstrating that the two 1 liter containers contained no hazardous waste.
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61. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the
waste, without a permit or interim status.

62. At the time of the FY97 inspection, at least 5 containers with regulated hazardous
wastes, methyl ethyl ketone (D035, F005) and toluene (F006), were found abandoned and not
under the control of the operator in the laboratory hood at TA-46, Bldg. 41, Room 105.

TA-50

63. TA- 50 generates hazardous waste. \

64.  Respondents’ Permit Module Il F. and 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR
§ 264.16(c)) requires RCRA facility personnel to take part in an annual review of initial training
as required under §264.16(a).

65. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility training records revealed
that the following individuals had not received the annual refresher training required for facility
personnel at TA-50: Paul Abercrombie, Rick Alexander, Julie Meadows and Robert Gonzales.

TA-53
66. TA-53 generates hazardous waste.
67. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who

generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).
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68. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found three 500ml containers with
unknown contents, labeled pending analysis and dated 9-11-96 at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126
with containers labeled hazardous waste.

69. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the container contained no hazardous waste.

TA- 54 - Permitted Hazardous Waste Storage Area

70. TA-54 is a permitted hazardous waste storage area at LANL.

71. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c). \

72. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a container of Cyanuric Fluoride, was not
adequately determined to be a hazardous waste and was inaccurately labeled as “non-regulated”
at TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69, LP6.

73. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR 262.34.(c)(1)(ii)) requires containers
holding hazardous waste to be ‘marked with the words “hazardous waste” or other words that
identify the contents of the container.

74. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a container of Cyanuric Fluoride, was
characterized improperly and inaccurately labeled as “non-regulated” at TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69,
LP6.

75.  In a written memorandum dated July 10, 1997, the Material Safety Data Sheet
(MSDS) stated that the material is a “hazardous waste for it’s characteristic of reactivity.” A

LANL employee also informed NMED that the container was “mislabeled” and “should have

been labeled D003 for cyanide.”
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76. Respondents’ hazardous waste storage permit for TA-54 prohibits the storage of
waste which is restricted from land disposal unless such container is clearly marked to identify its
contents and the date each period of accumulation begins in Permit Module II1.B.3.b, which
incorporates the requirements of 40 CFR § 268.50 (a)(2)(1).

77. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of the facility inspection logs
indicate that numerous mixed waste containers within the permitted storage area had faded,
illegible, and incomplete labels at TA-54, Area L.

78. At the time of the FY97 inspection, mixed waste storage shafts #36 and #37 were
not marked or labeled in a manner which clearly identifies the contents of containers in the
storage shafts as mixed waste at TA-54, Area L. \

79. 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(1)(ii)) requires the
generator
to notify the treatment or storage facility in writing that the waste being shipped does not meet
the applicable treatment standards set forth in subpart D and therefore must include the following
information on the notification; the waste constituents that the treater must monitor and whether
the waste is a nonwastewater or wastewater treatability group.

80. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility manifest numbers
95940157, 95940159, 95940158, 95940145 and 95940141 and their associated Land Disposal
Restriction (LDR) notices revealed that the appropriate wastc constituents were not marked on
the LDR notices at TA-54.

81. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility manifest numbers 97013
and 97016 and their associated LDR revealed that the proper treatability group was not marked

on the LDR notices at TA-54.
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TA-55
82.  TA-55 generates hazardous waste.
83. Respondents’ hazardous waste storage permit requires that facility personnel

obtain annual refresher training , incorporating 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (40 CFR § 264.16(c)).

84. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility training records revealed
that the following four individuals had not received the annual refresher training required for
facility personnel at TA-55: Basil J. Lewis, Chester A. Smith Jr., Susan Ramsey and Willard E.
Williams.

85. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using meth\?ds specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

86. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc”
Component B was incorrectly determined to be non-regulated and was found labeled as non-
regulated at the interim storage area at TA-55, Bldg. 0, outside of Bldg. 4.

87.  The 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc” is an ignitable hazardous waste which has a
flash point of 137° F and was identified in the MSDS sheet.

TA-60

88.  TA-60 generates hazardous waste.

89. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).
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90. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 55 gallon container of yellow paint waste
was found open and not stored correctly for possible hazardous waste at TA-60, Bldg. 131,
outside storage building.

91. Based on the history of noncompliance noted in Paragraphs 8 through 10 above,
and the violations noted in Paragraphs 12 through 90 above, Respondents are high priority
violators of 20 NMAC. 4.1

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Respondents are each a “person” as defined at §74-4-3. K. of HWA and §101 of
the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Management Regulations at 20 NMAC 4.1.101 through
.1109, which incorporates, with a few exceptions, federal regulation at 40 CFR Pag\ts 260 through
270.

2. Respondents manage "hazardous waste" as defined at §74-4-3.1. of HWA, and 20
NMAC 4.1.101, which incorporates, with few exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

3. Respondent DOE is an “owner” and a “co-operator” of an “existing hazardous
waste management facility” as defined at 20 NMAC 4.1.101 which incorporates with a few
exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

4. Respondent UC is an “operator” of an “existing hazardous waste management
facility” as defined at 20 NMAC 4.1.101, which incorporates with a few exceptions, federal
regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

5. Respondents engage in the “treatment”, “storage” and “disposal” of hazardous

waste as defined at §74-4-3.N. and Q., respectively, of the HWA, and 20 NMAC 4.1.100, which

incorporates, with a few exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR § 260.10.

14
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COUNTS 1 THROUGH 6: ACCUMULATION OF HAZARDOUS WASTE NOT UNDER
CONTROL OF GENERATOR [TA-3, TA-21, TA-41, TA-46, TA-53]

6. Paragraphs 1 through 16 (TA-3), 27 through 3 1 (TA-21), 42 through 44 (TA-41),
61 through 62 (TA-46), and 64 through 67 (TA-53) are hereby incorporated by reference.

7. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34(c)(1)) by
discarding a 2 liter container of hazardous waste by storage in lieu of disposal, which was not
under the control of the generator, at TA-3, Ion Beam Facility, Basement Laboratory.

8. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR
§ 262.34(c)(1)) by discarding two 1 gallon containers of characteristic hazardous waste by
storage in lieu of disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA\-2 1, Bldg. 59.

9. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34(c)(1))
by discarding a 55 gallon container of reactive hazardous waste by storage in lieu of disposal,
which was not under the control of the generator at TA-21, JCI-ESA/TSC, basement.

10. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incomorating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1))
by discarding four 5 gallon containers of characteristic hazardous waste by storage in lieu of
disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA-41, Bldg. 30, Room 264.

11. Respondents have violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR
§262.34(c)(1)) by discarding at least S containers of listed and characteristic hazardous waste by
storage in lieu of disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA-46, Bldg. 41,
Room 105.

12. Respondents have violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34 (c)

(1)) by discarding three 500 ml containers of possible mixed waste which was not under the
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control of the operator at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126.

COUNT 7: FAILURE TO MARK ACCUMULATION DATE [TA-3]

13. Paragraphs 1 through 18 are hereby incorporated by reference.

14. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34 (a)(2))
by failing to place the accumulation start date on four containers of hazardous waste in the less
than ninety day storage area located at TA-3, lon Beam Facility.

COUNT 8: NO OPERABLE DECONTAMINATION EQUIPMENT [TA-18]

15. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 19 through 21 are hereby incorporated by reference.
16. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §§ 262.34 (a)(4))
by failing to have operable decontamination equipment or water of sufficient pressure and

volume available at the less than ninety day storage area at TA-18.

COUNT 9: INADEQUATE HAZARDOUS WASTE DETERMINATION [TA-21]

17. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 22 through 26 are hereby incorporated by reference.

18. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) by
failing to perform an adequate hazardous waste determination on the unknown contents of a
discarded 2 gallon container at TA-21, Bldg.1, east side dock.

COUNTS 10 THROUGH 20: FAILURE TO PERFORM HAZARDOUS
WASTE DETERMINATION [TA-21, TA-33, TA-46, TA-53, TA-54, TA-55, TA-60]

19.  Paragraphs 1 through 11, 32 through 34 (TA-21), 35 through 41 (TA-33), 52
through 60 (TA-46), 64 through 67 (TA-53), 68 through 70 (TA-54), 83 through 85 (TA-55),
and 87 through 88 (TA-60) are hereby incorporated by reference.

20. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

failing to perform a hazardous waste determination on the unknown contents of an abandoned 5

16
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gallon container at TA-21, Shed 402.

21. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous waste determination on waste lead solder at TA-33, Bldg.39.

22. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on discarded photo processing chemicals in TA-33,
Bldg. 114, Room 125.

23. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on 21 various containers discarded since 1991 in
TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103.

24. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §.’%62.1 1) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a container of Dippit 646 discarded at TA-46,
Bldg. 208, under the tube canopy.

25. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a discarded 55 gallon container with unknown
contents at TA-46, Bldg. 31, south side.

26. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on two 1 liter abandoned containers with unknown
contents at TA-46, Bldg. 30, Room 106.

27.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on three 500 ml containers with unknown contents,
at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126.

28. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

failing to perform an adequate hazardous determination on a container of Cyanuric Fluoride at
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TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69, LP6.

29. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a 5 gallon con;ainer of “Viro-Duc” Component
B at TA-55, Bldg. 0, outside of Bldg. 4.

30. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a 55 gallon container of yellow paint waste at
TA-60, Bldg. 131, outside storage building.

COUNT 21: OPEN CONTAINER [TA-46]

31. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 45 through 48 are hereby incorporated by reference.

32.  Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR\
262.34(c)(1)(i)) by failing to keep a hazardous waste container closed in the satellite
accumulation area at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Room B-6.

COUNT 22: WASTES STORED IN EXCESS OF 90 DAY STORAGE LIMIT [TA-46]

33.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 49 through 51 are hereby incorporated by reference.

34 Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(b)) by
exceeding the ninety day storage time limit on at least 21 containers of discarded hazardous
waste without a permit at TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103.

COUNT 23: LACK OF ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING FOR PERSONNEL [TA-50]

35.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 61 through 63 are hereby incorporated by reference.

36.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR § 264.16(c)) or,
alternatively, 20 NMAC 4.1.600 (incorporating 40 CFR 265.16 (d)(4)) by failing to ensure
annual refresher training is taken by personnel at TA-50 as required in the Hazardous Waste

Storage Permit Module ILF.
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COUNT 24: IMPROPER LABELING [TA-54]

37. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 71 through 73 are hereby incorporated by reference.
38. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34
(c)(1)(11)) by failing to properly label a container of reactive hazardous waste at TA-54, Area L,

Bldg. 69, Row 4, LP6.

COUNT 25: IMPROPER LABELING/LAND DISPOSAL RESTRICTION WASTE

TA-54

39. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 74 through 76 are hereby incorporated by reference.

40. Respondents violated the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit Modu1§: [II.B.3.b and
20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR §268.50(2)(2)(i)) by failing to maintain adequate
labels on numerous containers of mixed waste within the permitted storage area of TA-54, Area
L.

41.  Respondents violated the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit Module II1.B.3.b and
20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR 268.50 CFR §268.50 (a)(2)(1)) by failing to mark or
label the contents and the accumulation start date on the storage shafts #36 and #37 at TA-54,

Area L.

COUNT 26 AND 27: VIOLATIONS OF LDR NOTICES [TA-54]

42.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 77 through 79 are hereby incorporated by reference.
43.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR §268.7(a)(1)(ii))

by failing to mark the proper waste constituents on LDR notices for five manifests at TA-54.
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44. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(1)(i1))
by failing to mark the proper treatability group on LDR notices for manifest Numbers 97013 and

97016, dated 2/27/97, at TA-54.

COUNT 28: LACK OF ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING FOR PERSONNEL

TA-55
45. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 80 through 82 are hereby incorporated by reference.
46.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 4¢ CFR § 264.16(c)) or,
alternatively, 20 NMAC 4.1.600 (incorporating 40 CFR 265.16 (d)(4)) failing to ensure that
annual refresher training is taken by personnel at TA-55 as required in the Hazardous Waste

Storage Permit Module ILF.

CIVIL PENALTY

1. Section 74-4-10 of the HWA authorizes the assessment of a civil penalty of up to
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per day for each violation of the HWA or the regulations
promulgated thereunder. Complainant hereby assesses a civil penalty of One Million One
Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Six Dollars ($1,168,766), against
Respondents. The penalty is based on the seriousness of the violations and the lack of good faith
efforts on the part of Respondents to comply with the applicable requirements, and any economic
benefit resulting from noncompliance accruing to Respondents and such other matters as justice
may require. The penalty amount is calculated pursuant to the NMED's Civil Penalty Policy.

The penalty for each violation is:

VIOLATION AMOUNT
97 Hazardous waste not under control of generator $15,525
18 Hazardous waste not under control of generator $ 9,300
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910
q11
112
914
116
118
920
121
122
123
124
q25
126
127
28
129
930
132
134
136
q38

940

Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator

No accumulation start date on containers

No operable eyewash

Inadequate hazardous waste determination made
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to keep a container closed

Illegal storage past 90 days

Lack of annual refresher training

Failure to properly label

Failure to properly label

21
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$145,000
$27,675
$27,675
$30,983
$15,525
$4,500
$2,400
$2,400
$6,000
$54,600
$200,700
$54,600
$2,400
$2,400
$34,425
$54,600
$6,000
$54,600
$1,125
$200,700
$54,600
$54,600

$27,675
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941  Failure to properly label $21,218
943  Failure to mark the appropriate waste codes on LDRs $1,470
944  Failure to mark the treatability group on LDRs ‘ $1,470
945 Lack of annual refresher training $54,600

Payment shall be made to the State of New Mexico Hazardous Waste Emergency Fund by
certified check, bank draft, or other guaranteed negotiable instrument, and mailed to or hand
delivered to Karen Breslin, Office of General Counsel, New Mexico Environment Department,
P.0O. Box 26110, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502.

SCHEDULE OF COMPLIANCE

A
3

2. Based on the foregoing Findings and Conclusions, Respondents are ordered to
comply with the following Schedule of Compliance:

A. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall
perform adequate hazardous waste determinations for all wastes
identified in paragraph 12. Respondents shall provide documentation of
analyses or proper determination and disposition.

B. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall
provide documentation of measures taken to gain appropriate control
over the hazardous waste stored for an indeﬁnite period of time after a
project ends or funding disappears, and in particular the wastes identified
in paragraphs 11, 22, 23, 26, 28, and 34.

C. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall

provide documentation that required annual refresher training has been
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provided for facility persoﬁnel identified in paragraph 36 and 46 and
provide a plan to prevent this violation from happening in the future.

D. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Orde;, provide a copy of the
plan put into effect to correct the eye wash violation in paragraph 16.

E. Within 10 calendar days from receipt of this Order, ensure that containers
described in paragraph 40 are properly labeled and properly label the
mixed waste storage shafts with appropriate signs to identify contents of
the shafts identified in paragraph 41, and provide documentation of same
within 30 calendar days.

F. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide
documentation of proper storage or disposal of all discarded or
abandoned materials/wastes identified in paragraphs 23, 24, 25, and 28.

G. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide
documentation of corrections to the deficiencies on all LDR’s noted in
paragraphs 43 and 44.

H. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide a plan to
adequately address testing and disposal of unknowns. Paragraph 18 was
not tested or handled correctly following the inspection.

Compliance with the violations noted in paragraphs 7, 8, 9, 10, 14, 20, 21, 22, 27, 29, 30, 32, and
38 were appropriately addressed by the Respondent at the time of the inspection or within an
appropriate timeframe. No further action is required on these violations.

NOTICE

3. If Respondents fail to timely comply with the Schedule of Compliance or if
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Respondents elect not to comply with the schedule of Compliance and to challenge it as set forth

below, the Secretary may assess additional civil penalties of not more than twenty-five thousand

dollars ($25,000) for each day of continued noncompliance pursuant to §74-4-10.C. of the HWA.

4.

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO ANSWER AND REQUEST A HEARING

Respondents have a right to request a hearing pursuant to §74-4-10.H. of the HWA

and 20 NMAC 1.5.200 of NMED’s Adjudicatory Procedures by filing a written request for

Hearing with the Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of this Order. The

Request for Hearing shall include an Answer. The Answer shall:

5.

A. clearly and directly admit or deny each of the factual assertions contained

in the Compliance Order/Determination; but where the Respondent/Complainant

A
\

has no knowledge of a particular factual assertion and so states, the assertion may
be denied on basis. Any allegation of the Compliance Order/Determination not
specifically denied shall be deemed admitted;

B. indicate any affirmative defenses upon which the
Respondent/Complainant intends to rely. Any affirmative defense not asserted in
the Request for Hearing, except a defense asserting lack of subject matter
jurisdiction, shall be deemed waived;

C. be signed under oath or affirmation that the information contained therein
is to the best of the signers knowledge believed to be true and correct; and

D. have a copy of the compliance Order/Determination attached.

A hearing upon the issues raised by the Order and Answer shall be held upon the

request of the Respondents. NMED’s Adjudicatory Procedures shall govern all hearing and pre-

hearing procedures. Respondents may contact the Hearing Clerk for a copy of these regulations.
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The Hearing Clerk’s name and address is:
Tamella Lakes, Hearing Clerk

P.O. Box 26110

1190 St. Francis Drive

Harold Runnels Building, N4084

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502

(505) 827-2842

-

FINALITY OF ORDER

6. This Order shall become final unless Respondents file a written Request for
Hearing and Answer within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Order. Failure by the
Respondents to file an Answer constitutes an admission-of all facts alleged in the Order and a
waiver of Respondent’s right to a hearing under §74-4-10 of the HWA.

SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

7. Whether or not Respondents file an Answer and Request for Hearing,
Respondents may confer with Complainant concerning settlement. A request for a settlement
conference does not extend the thirty (30) day period during which the Answer and Request for
Hearing must be submitted. The settlement conference may be pursued as an alternative to, or
simultaneously with, the hearing proceedings. Respondents may appear at the settlement

conference or by represented by counsel.
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8. Any settlement reached by the parties shall be approved by a stipulated final Order
of the Secretary of NMED pursuant to the conditions set forth in 20 NMAC 1.5.601. The
issuance of such an Order shall serve to resolve all issues raisgd in the Order, shall be final and
binding on all parties to the Order, and shall not be appealable.

9. To explore the possibility of settlement in this matter, contact Ms. Debby
Brinkerhoff of the Environment Department, P.O. Box 26110, 1220 St. Francis Drive, Santa Fe,
NM 87501, telephone number (505) §27-1508.

TERMINATION

10. Compliance with the requirements of this Order does not relieve Respondents of
their obligation to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. This Order shall terminate
A\
when Respondents certify that all requirements of the Order have been completed and NMED

has approved such certification, or when the Secretary approves a stipulated final order.

By: - Date:

Gregory J. Lewis, Director

Water and Waste Management Division
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that the foregoing Administrative Compliance Order was mailed postage

prepaid as follows on this day of December, 1999 to the following:

Via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested:

Mr. David A. Gurule, Area Manager
U.S. Department of Energy

Los Alamos Area Office

528 35th Street, MS A316

Los Alamos, NM 87544

-—

Dr. John C. Browne, Director
Los Alamos National Laboratory
P.O. Box 1663, MS A100

Los Alamos, NM 87545

Attorney NMED/OGC

Respondents are required to comply with all terms and conditions of its HWA permit. NMSA
1978, Section 74-4-10 of the HWA and 20 NMAC 4.1.900 (incorporating 40 CFR 270.4).
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

IN THE MATTER OF ,

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY HRM -99-03(CO)

OF CALIFORNIA (1997 Inspection)

LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO

NM0890010515

RESPONDENTS.

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE ORDER

The Secretary of Environment, acting through the Director of the Water and Waste
Management Division of the New Mexico Environment Department NMED), iss\ues this
Administrative Compliance Order (Order) to the United States Department of Energy (DOE) and
the Regents of the University of California (UC)(collectively refetred to as Respondents),
pursuant to the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Act (HWA), NMSA 1978 § 74-4-10 (Repl.Pamp.
1993).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. NMED is the agency within the executive branch of the government of the State
of New Mexico charged with the administration and enforcement of the HWA and New Mexico
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (HWMR), 20 NMAC 4.1.101 through .1109.

2. Respondents are DOE and UC, who notified the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA), of their hazardous waste generation activities on November 19, 1980.

3. DOE is an agency of the federal government and the owner and co-operator of Los

Alamos National Laboratory (LANL).



4. UC is a public educational institution of the State of California and the
management and operating contractor for LANL pursuant to a contract with DOE, and is a co-

operator of LANL.

5. LANL is principally located in Los Alamos County, New Mexico, approximately
sixty miles northeast of Albuquerque and twenty-five miles northwest of Santa Fe. The LANL
site encompasses approximately forty-three square miles.

™ 6. LANL was chosen as the site for the wartime development of the atomic bomb.
The facility was established as a military reservation, and operations began in 1943. Since 1943,
the primary mission of LANL has been nuclear weapons research and development. In addition,
the facility does work in magnetic and internal fusion, nuclear fission, nuclear safeguards and
security, laser isotope separation, and medical isotope development.

. In association with the activities identified above, LANL generates, treats and
stores hazardous wastes and mixed hazardous and radioactive wastes. LANL has also applied for
and received a HWA permit from NMED for the storage and management of hazardous wastes
and mixed hazardous and radioactive wastes.

\ \\\ 2 8. Over the past seven years, NMED has issued numerous compliance orders seeking
compliance and civil penalties. In 1992 through 1994, NMED inspected LANL, discovered
violations of HWMR-7, and issued Respondents compliance orders (93-01, 93-02, 93-03, 93-04,
94-09, 94-12), which sought compliance and assessed civil penalties. In 1995, NMED inspected
LANL, discovered violations of HRMW, 20 NMAC 4.1, and issued LANL and DOE
compliance orders (95-03, 95-08), which sought compliance and assessed civil penalties. In

1996, NMED inspected LANL, discovered violations of the HRMW, 20 NMAC 4.1, and issued

a letter of violation.
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9. The violations cited in the enforcement actions describéd above in paragraph 8,
included, but were not limited to the following: failure to perform hazardous waste
determinations (94-09), failure to keep a hazardous waste container closed (93-04, 94-09), failure
to label hazardous waste containers (93-04, 94-09), failure to provide decontamination
equipment at a less than ninety day storage area (93-04, 94-09), exceeding storage time limits for
hazardous waste (93-04, 94-09), manifesting violations (93-04, 94-09), LDR violations (1993
EPA multi-media), training violations (93-04, 94-09) and accumulation of waste not under
control of the generator ( 94-09).

10. As a result of the compliance orders described above in paragraph 9, Respondents
entered into an administrative order on consent (1992 - 1994) and stipulated final order (SFO)
(1995) and agreed to a schedule of compliance and the payment of civil penalties.

11. Between July 8, 1997 and December 8, 1997, NMED performed a compliance
evaluation inspection (FY 97 Inspection) of LANL to determine Respondents’ compliance status
with the HWA and HWMR, 20 NMAC 4.1. The FY 97 inspection involved all technical areas
(TA) at LANL. The following violations were discovered at TA-3, TA-18, TA-21, TA-33, TA-
46, TA-54, TA-55 and TA-60.

TA-3, Ion Beam Facility

p—

-

T 12, TA-3 generates hazardous waste.

13. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the

waste, without a permit or interim status.
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""‘"(14‘*. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 2 liter container of hydrochloric acid was
found discarded and not under the control of the generator at TA-3, lon Beam Facility, Basement

Laboratory.

15. In a written memorandum dated December 18, 1997, LANL stated that the 2 liter
container contained hydrochloric acid, a corrosive characteristic waste (D-002).
16. Upon information and belief, the two liter container had not been under
Respondents’ control for at least thirty-two days.
17. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(a)(2)) requires a generator 10
mark the date upon which each period of accumulation begins, clearly and visibly, for inspection

on each container.

\

> 18. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED discovered that 4 containers of
hazardous waste were not marked with the date upon which each accumulation period started.
The containers that were not labeled correctly were: 2 bottles of Red X TV Corona Dope, 1
container of Handy Flux and one 2 liter gas cylinder.

TA-18

19. TA-18 generates hazardous waste.

20. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 ( incorporating 40 CFR §§ 264.34(a)(4) requires Respondents
to have operable decontamination equipment and water at adequate volume and pressure, unless
a demonstration to the Secretary is made that no hazard is posed.

21. At the time of the FY97 inspection, there was no operable eyewash or water of
adequate volume available at the less than ninety day storage area in TA-18. LANL personnel

admitted to these facts in writing. Further, LANL personnel stated that there is no policy on the

operation of the eyewash for the less than ninety day storage area.
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TA-21

22.  TA-21 generates hazardous waste.

23. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.1 1) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

24. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 2 gallon container with
unknown contents discarded at TA-21, Bldg. 1, east side dock.

25. LANL personnel stated that the container was filled with oily dirt and sludge and
contained no hazardous waste.

26. Upon request by NMED, LANL provided documentation to suppor\t its hazardous
waste determination. Upon review, the documentation inadequately demonstrated that the
container contains no hazardous waste.

27. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c) sets forth the requirements
for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of acutely
listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes initially
accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the waste
without a permit or interim status.

28. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found two 1 gallon containers

discarded and not under the control of the generator for an unknown period of time at TA-21,

Bldg. 59.
29.  The two 1 gallon containers contained a listed hazardous waste, 111
Trichloroethylene.
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30. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 55 gallon container, half full of Titanium
crystals was found discarded and not under the control of the generator at TA-21, JCI-ESA/TSC,
basement.

31. Titanium crystals are reactive and characteristic hazardous waste (D003).

32. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

33. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 5 gallon container, 2/3 full of
unknown contents, discarded at TA-21, Shed 402.

34. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED \no
documentation demonstrating that the 5 gallon container contained no hazardous waste.

TA-33 - Mobile Laser Staging Area

35.  TA-33 generates hazardous waste.

36. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

37. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found “waste lead solder” discarded
for an unknown period of time at TA-33, Bldg. 39.

38. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the “waste lead solder” contains no hazardous waste.

39. Upon information and belief, the “waste lead solder” contained lead and is a
characteristic hazardous waste. Further, LANL stated in a written memorandum, that after the

NMED inspector noted the violation, it corrected the violation.
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40. At the time of the FY97 inspection, at least 16 containers of photo processing
chemicals were discarded for at least ten months at TA-33, Bldg. 114, Room 125.

41. Respondents’ hazardous waste determination regarding these containers was
inadequate and did not demonstrate to NMED that the photo processing chemicals contained no
hazardous waste.

TA-41

42. TA-41 generates hazardous waste.

43. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any point of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the
waste without a permit or interim status.

44. Based on information and belief, at the time of the FY97 inspection, four 5 gallon
carboys containing naphtha and mineral spirits were found abandoned at TA-41, Bldg. 30, Room
264.

TA-46

45. TA-46 has a hazardous waste satellite storage area.

46. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34.(c)(1)(i)) which incorporates
40 CFR § 265.173(a) requires containers holding hazardous waste to be closed during storage,
except when necessary to add or remove waste.

47. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 5 gallon container of

hazardous waste open at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Room B-6.
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48. The 5 gallon container was marked with words stating that it contained 3% HCL
with a trace of mercury.

49. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(b)) provides that a generator
who accumulates hazardous waste for more than ninety days is an operator of a storage facility
and is subject to the requirements of 40 CFR Part 264 and 40 CFR Part 265 and permit
requirements under 40 CFR Part 270.

50. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found at least 21 containers of
hazardous materials discarded and stored without a permit at TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103. The
following containers were as follows: one 2 gallon of acetic acid (D002), one % gallon
hydrochloric acid (D002), one 500 ml of hydroflouric acid (D002), one % gallon n\itric acid
(D002), one ¥4 gallon sulfuric acid (D002), one 1/3 gallon nitric acid (D002), four 500 ml bottles
of outdated Eastman Kodak White Reflectance Coating (D001 containing Barium Sulfate and
ethanol with a flash point of 72° F), one 500 ml bottle of Kodak White Reflectance Paint, one
200 ml bottle of trifluoroacetic acid (D002), one tube of Iodo acetylene or CH3I (D003), 1 jar of
distilled mercury (D009), one 200 ml bottle of acetone (F003), one 1 gallon liquid Versatec
(xerox toner premix Type M) (D001 with a flash point of 102° F), one 1/3 full can of Methly
Alcohol (D001), one 1 gallon container Ancamine T-1, 1 gas cylinder of borazine (B3N3H6), 1
small tube of HBNH3 (D003), and 1 container of H3B.N(CH3)3.

51. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents had abandoned these 21
containers since possibly 1991 and the storage area did not meet the requirements of a less than

ninety day storage area and was not permitted to store hazardous waste for long term.
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52. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR 262.11 (a)(b) and (c).

S3. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents had failed to make a hazardous
waste determination on 21 containers, as described in paragraph 50, discarded since possibly
1991.

54. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the 21 containers contained no hazardous waste.

55. At the time of the FY 97 inspection, Respondents failed to determine if a
container of Dippit 646 was hazardous waste when discarded at TA-46, Bldg. 208, under the
tube canopy.

56. Respondents failed to determine if Dippit 646 was a hazardous waste when it was
abandoned. Respondents have since stated that Dippit 646 is a hazardous waste and it is
indicated as such in the MSDS.

57.  Atthe time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found a 55 gallon container with
unknown contents abandoned at TA-46, Bldg. 31, south side.

58. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the abandoned 55 gallon container contained no hazardous
waste.

59. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found two 1 liter abandoned
containers with unknown contents at TA-46, Bldg. 30, Room 106.

60. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no

documentation demonstrating that the two 1 liter containers contained no hazardous waste.
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61. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1)) sets forth the
requirements for generators to accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or 1 quart of
acutely listed hazardous waste in containers at or near any poigt of generation where wastes
initially accumulate, which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the
waste, without a permit or interim status.

62. At the time of the FY97 inspection, at least 5 containers with regulated hazardous
wastes, methyl ethyl ketone (D035, FO05) and toluene (F006), were found abandoned and not
under the control of the operator in the laboratory hood at TA-46, Bldg. 41, Room 105.

TA-50

63. TA- 50 generates hazardous waste. \

64.  Respondents’ Permit Module I F. and 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR
§ 264.16(c)) requires RCRA facility personnel to take part in an annual review of initial training
as required under §264.16(a).

65. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility training records revealed
that the following individuals had not received the annual refresher training required for facility
personnel at TA-50: Paul Abercrombie, Rick Alexander, Julie Meadows and Robert Gonzales.

TA-S3
66.  TA-53 generates hazardous waste.
67. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who

generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).

10
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68. At the time of the FY97 inspection, NMED found three 500m! containers with
unknown contents, labeled pending analysis and dated 9-11-96 at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126
with containers labeled hazardous waste.

69. At the time of the FY97 inspection, Respondents provided NMED no
documentation demonstrating that the container contained no hazérdous waste.

TA- 54 - Permitted Hazardous Waste Storage Area

70. TA-54 is a permitted hazardous waste storage area at LANL.

71. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c). \

72. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a container of Cyanuric Fluoride, was not
adequately determined to be a hazardous waste and was inaccurately labeled as “non-regulated”
at TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69, LP6.

73. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR 262.34.(c)(1)(ii)) requires containers
holding hazardous waste to be marked with the words “hazardous waste” or other words that
identify the contents of the container.

74. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a container of Cyanuric Fluoride, was
characterized improperly and inaccurately labeled as “non-regulated” at TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69,
LPé6.

75. In a written memorandum dated July 10, 1997, the Material Safety Data Sheet
(MSDS) stated that the material is a “hazardous waste for it’s characteristic of reactivity.” A

LANL employee also informed NMED that the container was “mislabeled” and “should have

been labeled D003 for cyanide.”
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76. Respondents’ hazardous waste storage permit for TA-54 prohibits the storage of
waste which is restricted from land disposal unless such container is clearly marked to identify its
contents and the date each period of accumulation begins in Pgrmit Module I11.B.3.b, which
incorporates the requirements of 40 CFR § 268.50 (a)(2)(i).

77. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of the facility inspection logs
indicate that numerous mixed waste containers within the permitted storage area had faded,
illegible, and incomplete labels at TA-54, Area L.

78. At the time of the FY97 inspection, mixed waste storage shafts #36 and #37 were
not marked or labeled in a manner which clearly identifies the contents of containers in the
storage shafts as mixed waste at TA-54, Area L. .

79. 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(1)(ii)) requires the
generator to notify the treatment or storage facility in writing that the waste being shipped does
not meet the applicable treatment standards set forth in subpart D and therefore must include the
following information on the notification; the waste constituents that the treater must monitor
and whether the waste is a nonwastewater or wastewater treatability group.

80. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility manifest numbers
95940157, 95940159, 95940158, 95940145 and 95940141 and their associated Land Disposal
Restriction (LDR) notices revealed that the appropriate waste constituents were not marked on
the LDR notices at TA-54.

81. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility manifest numbers 97013

and 97016 and their associated LDR revealed that the proper treatability group was not marked

on the LDR notices at TA-54.
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TA-55
82. TA-55 generates hazardous waste.
83. Respondents® hazardous waste storage permit requires that facility personnel

obtain annual refresher training , incorporating 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (40 CFR § 264.16(c)).

84. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a review of facility training records revealed
that the following four individuals had not received the annual refresher training required for
facility personnel at TA-55: Basil J. Lewis, Chester A. Smith Jr., Susan Ramsey and Willard E.
Williams.

85. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in
20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (¢).

86. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc”
Component B was incorrectly determined to be non-regulated and was found labeled as non-
regulated at the interim storage area at TA-55, Bldg. 0, outside of Bldg. 4.

87.  The 5 gallon container of “Viro-Duc” is an ignitable hazardous waste which has a
flash point of 137° F and was identified in the MSDS sheet.

TA-60

88. TA-60 generates hazardous waste.

89. 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) requires any person who
generates a solid waste to determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using methods specified in

20 CFR § 262.11(a)(b) and (c).
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90. At the time of the FY97 inspection, a 55 gallon container of yellow paint waste
was found open and not stored correctly for possible hazardous waste at TA-60, Bldg. 131.
outside storage building.

91. Based on the history of noncompliance noted in Paragraphs 8 through 10 above,
and the violations noted in Paragraphs 12 through 90 above, Respondents are high priority
violators of 20 NMAC. 4.1

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Respondents are each a “person” as defined at §74-4-3.K. of HWA and §101 of
the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Management Regulations at 20 NMAC 4.1.101 through
.1109, which incorporates, with a few exceptions, federal regulation at 40 CFR Pa\rts 260 through
2170.

2. Respondents manage "hazardous waste" as defined at §74-4-3.1. of HWA, and 20
NMAC 4.1.101, which incorporates, with few exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

3. Respondent DOE is an “owner” and a “co-operator” of an “existing hazardous
- waste management facility” as defined at 20 NMAC 4.1.101 which incorporates with a few
exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

4. Respondent UC is an “operator” of an “existing hazardous waste management
facility” as defined at 20 NMAC 4.1.101, which incorporates with a few exceptions, federal
regulation 40 CFR §260.10.

S. Respondents engage in the “treatment”, “storage” and “disposal” of hazardous
waste as defined at §74-4-3.N. and Q., respectively, of the HWA, and 20 NMAC 4.1.100, which

incorporates, with a few exceptions, federal regulation 40 CFR § 260.10.

14
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COUNTS 1 THROUGH 6: ACCUMULATION OF HAZARDOUS WASTE NOT UNDER
CONTROL OF GENERATOR [TA-3, TA-21, TA-41, TA-46, TA-53]

6. Paragraphs 1 through 16 (TA-3), 27 through 31 (TA-21), 42 through 44 (TA-41),
61 through 62 (TA-46), and 64 through 67 (TA-53) are hereby incorporated by reference.

7. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34(c)(1)) by
discarding a 2 liter container of hazardous waste by storage in lieu of disposal, which was not
under the control of the generator, at TA-3, lIon Beam Facility, Basement Laboratory.

8. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR
§ 262.34(c)(1)) by discarding two 1 gallon containers of characteristic hazardous waste by
storage in lieu of disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA\21, Bldg. 59.

9. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34(c)(1))
by discarding a 55 gallon container of reactive hazardous waste by storage in lieu of disposal,
which was not under the control of the generator at TA-21, JCI-ESA/TSC, basement.

10. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(c)(1))
by discarding four 5 gallon containers of characteristic hazardous waste by storage in lieu of
disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA-41, Bldg. 30, Room 264.

11.  Respondents have violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR
§262.34(c)(1)) by discarding at least 5 containers of listed and characteristic hazardous waste by
storage in lieu of disposal, which was not under the control of the generator at TA-46, Bldg. 41,
Room 105.

12.  Respondents have violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34 (c )

(1)) by discarding three 500 ml containers of possible mixed waste which was not under the

15
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control of the operator at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126.

COUNT 7: FAILURE TO MARK ACCUMULATION DATE [TA-3]

13. Paragraphs 1 through 18 are hereby incorporated by reference.

14. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.34 (a)(2))
by failing to place the accumulation start date on four containers of hazardous waste in the less
than ninety day storage area located at TA-3, Ion Beam Facility.

COUNT 8: NO OPERABLE DECONTAMINATION EQUIPMENT [TA-18]

15. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 19 through 21 are hereby incorporated by reference.

16. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §§ 262.34 (a)(4))
by failing to have operable decontamination equipment or water of sufficient pressure and
volume available at the less than ninety day storage area at TA-18.

COUNT 9: INADEQUATE HAZARDOUS WASTE DETERMINATION [TA-21}

17. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 22 through 26 are hereby incorporated by reference.

18.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.11) by
failing to perform an adequate hazardous waste determination on the unknown contents of a
discarded 2 gallon container at TA-21, Bldg.1, east side dock.

COUNTS 10 THROUGH 20: FAILURE TO PERFORM HAZARDOUS
WASTE DETERMINATION [TA-21, TA-33, TA-46, TA-53, TA-54, TA-55, TA-60]

19.  Paragraphs 1 through 11, 32 through 34 (TA-21), 35 through 41 (TA-33), 52
through 60 (TA-46), 64 through 67 (TA-53), 68 through 70 (TA-54), 83 through 85 (TA-55),
and 87 through 88 (TA-60) are hereby incorporated by reference.

20. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

failing to perform a hazardous waste determination on the unknown contents of an abandoned 5
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gallon container at TA-21, Shed 402.

21. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous waste determination on waste lgad solder at TA-33, Bldg.39.

22. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on discarded photo processing chemicals in TA-33,
Bldg. 114, Room 125.

23. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on 21 various containers discarded since 1991 in
TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103.

24. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §2\62.1 1) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a container of Dippit 646 discarded at TA-46,
Bldg. 208, under the tube canopy.

25. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a discarded 55 gallon container with unknown
contents at TA-46, Bldg. 31, south side.

26. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on two 1 liter abandoned containers with unknown
contents at TA-46, Bldg. 30, Room 106.

27.‘ Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on three 500 ml containers with unknown contents,
at TA-53, Bldg. 1, Room D-126.

28. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by

failing to perform an adequate hazardous determination on a container of Cyanuric Fluoride at
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TA-54, Area L, Bldg. 69, LP6.

29. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a 5 gallon cor}tainer of “Viro-Duc” Component
B at TA-55, Bldg. 0, outside of Bldg. 4.

30. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR §262.11) by
failing to perform a hazardous determination on a 55 gallon container of yellow paint waste at
TA-60, Bldg. 131, outside storage building.

COUNT 21: OPEN CONTAINER [TA-46]

31. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 45 through 48 are hereby incorporated by reference.

32. Respondents violated of 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR\
262.34(c)(1)(1)) by failing to keep a hazardous waste container closed in the satellite
accumulation area at TA-46, Bldg. 24, Room B-6.

COUNT 22: WASTES STORED IN EXCESS OF 90 DAY STORAGE LIMIT [TA-46]

33.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 49 through 51 are hereby incorporated by reference.

34.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34(b)) by
exceeding the ninety day storage time limit on at least 21 containers of discarded hazardous
waste without a permit at TA-46, Bldg. 31, Room 103.

COUNT 23: LACK OF ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING FOR PERSONNEL [TA-50]

35.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 61 through 63 are hereby incorporated by reference.

36.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR § 264.16(c)) or,
alternatively, 20 NMAC 4.1.600 (incorporating 40 CFR 265.16 (d)(4)) by failing to ensure
annual refresher training is taken by personnel at TA-50 as required in the Hazardous Waste

Storage Permit Module ILF.

18
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COUNT 24: IMPROPER LABELING [TA-54]

37. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 71 through 73 are hereby incorporated by reference.
38. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.300 (incorporating 40 CFR § 262.34
(c)(1)(i1)) by failing to properly label a container of reactive hazardous waste at TA-54, Area L,

Bldg. 69, Row 4, LP6.

COUNT 25: IMPROPER LABELING/LAND DISPOSAL RESTRICTION WASTE

TA-54

39. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 74 through 76 are hereby incorporated by reference.

40. Respondents violated the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit Module\III.B.B.b and
20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR §268.50(a)(2)(i)) by failing to maintain adequate
labels on numerous containers of mixed waste within the permitted storage area of TA-54, Area
L.

41.  Respondents violated the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit Module III.B.3.b and
20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR 268.50 CFR §268.50 (a)(2)(1)) by failing to mark or
label the contents and the accumulation start date on the storage shafts #36 and #37 at TA-54,

Area L.

COUNT 26 AND 27: VIOLATIONS OF LLDR NOTICES [TA-54]

42.  Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 77 through 79 are hereby incorporated by reference.
43.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR §268.7(a)(1)(i1))

by failing to mark the proper waste constituents on LDR notices for five manifests at TA-54.
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44. Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.800 (incorporating 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(1)(ii))

by failing to mark the proper treatability group on LDR notices for manifest Numbers 97013 and

97016, dated 2/27/97, at TA-54.

COUNT 28: LACK OF ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING FOR PERSONNEL

TA-55
45. Paragraphs 1 through 11 and 80 through 82 are hereby incorporated by reference.
46.  Respondents violated 20 NMAC 4.1.500 (incorporating 40 CFR § 264.16(c)) or,
alternatively, 20 NMAC 4.1.600 (incorporating 40 CFR 265.16 (d)(4)) failing to ensure that

annual refresher training is taken by personnel at TA-55 as required in the Hazardous Waste

Storage Permit Module ILF.

-—

CIVIL PENALTY

1. Section 74-4-10 of the HWA authorizes the assessment of a civil penalty of up to
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per day for each violation of the HWA or the regulations
promulgated thereunder. Complainant hereby assesses a civil penalty of One Million One
Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Six Dollars ($1,168,766), against
Respondents. The penalty is based on the seriousness of the violations and the lack of good faith
efforts on the part of Respondents to comply with the applicable requirements, and any economic
benefit resulting from noncompliance accruing to Respondents and such other matters as justice
may require. The penalty amount is calculated pursuant to the NMED's Civil Penalty Policy.

The penalty for each violation is:

VIOLATION AMOUNT
q7 Hazardous waste not under control of generator $15,525
98 Hazardous waste not under control of generator $9,300
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910
11
112
114
116
118
920
121
122
123
124
925
126
127
q28
129
{30
132
934
136
938

140

Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator
Hazardous waste not under control of generator

No accumulation start date on containers

No operable eyewash

Inadequate hazardous waste determination made
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to perform a hazardous waste determination
Failure to keep a container closed

Illegal storage past 90 days

Lack of annual refresher training

Failure to properly label

Failure to properly label

21

$145,000
$27,675
$27,675
$30,983
$15,525
$4,500
$2,400
$2,400
$6,000
$54,600
$200,700
$54,600
$2,400
$2,400
$34,425
$54,600
$6,000
$54,600
$1,125
$200,700
$54,600
$54,600

$27,675




941 Failure to properly label $21,218
943 Failure to mark the appropriate waste codes on LDRs $1,470
944  Failure to mark the treatability group on LDRs $1,470
945 Lack of annual refresher training $54,600

Payment shall be made to the State of New Mexico Hazardous Waste Emergency Fund by
certified check, bank draft, or other guaranteed negotiable instrument, and mailed to or hand
delivered to Karen Breslin, Office of General Counsel, New Mexico Environment Department,
P.O. Box 26110, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502.

SCHEDULE OF COMPLIANCE

\

2. Based on the foregoing Findings and Conclusions, Respondents are ordered to
comply with the following Schedule of Compliance:

A. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall
perform adequate hazardous waste determinations for all wastes
identified in paragraph 12. Respondents shall provide-documentation of
analyses or proper determination and disposition.

B. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall
provide documentation of measures taken to gain appropriate control
over the hazardous waste stored for an indefinite period of time after a
project ends or funding disappears, and in particular the wastes identified
in paragraphs 11, 22, 23, 26, 28, and 34.

C. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, Respondents shall

provide documentation that required annual refresher training has been
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;
provided for facility personnel identified in paragraph 36 and 46 and
provide a plan to prevent this violation from happening in the future.
D. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide a copy of the
plan put into effect to correct the eye wash violation in paragraph 16.
E. Within 10 calendar days from receipt of this Order, ensure that containers
described in paragraph 40 are properly labeled and properly label the
mixed waste storage shafts with appropriate signs to identify contents of
the shafts identified in paragraph 41, and provide documentation of same
within 30 calendar days.
F. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide
documentation of proper storage or disposal of all discarded or
abandoned materials/wastes identified in paragraphs 23, 24, 25, and 28.
G. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide
documentation of corrections to the deficiencies on all LDR’s noted in
paragraphs 43 and 44.
H. Within 30 calendar days from receipt of this Order, provide a plan to
adequately address testing and disposal of unknowns. Paragraph 18 was
not tested or handled correctly following the inspection.
Compliance with the violations noted in paragraphs 7, 8, 9, 10, 14, 20, 21, 22, 27, 29, 30, 32, and
38 were appropriately addressed by the Respondent at the time of the inspection or within an
appropriate timeframe. No further action is required on these violations.

NOTICE

3. If Respondents fail to timely comply with the Schedule of Compliance or if
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Respondents elect not to comply with the schedule of Compliance and to challenge it as set forth

below, the Secretary may assess additional civil penalties of not more than twenty-five thousand

dollars ($25,000) for each day of continued noncompliance pursuant to §74-4-10.C. of the HWA.

4.

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO ANSWER AND REQUEST A HEARING

Respondents have a right to request a hearing pursuant to §74-4-10.H. of the HWA

and 20 NMAC 1.5.200 of NMED’s Adjudicatory Procedures by filing a written request for

Hearing with the Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of this Order. The

Request for Hearing shall include an Answer. The Answer shall:

5.

A. clearly and directly admit or deny each of the factual assertions contained
in the Compliance Order/Determination; but where the Respondent/Complainant
has no knowledge of a particular factual assertion and so states, thg assertion may
be denied on basis. Any allegation of the Compliance Order/Determination not
specifically denied shall be deemed admitted,;

B. indicate any affirmative defenses upon which the
Respondent/Complainant intends to rely. Any affirmative defense not asserted in
the Request for Hearing, except a defense asserting lack of subject matter
jurisdiction, shall be deemed waived;

C. be signed under oath or affirmation that the information contained therein
is to the best of the signers knowledge believed to be true and correct; and

D. have a copy of the compliance Order/Determination attached.

A hearing upon the issues raised by the Order and Answer shall be held upon the

request of the Respondents. NMED’s Adjudicatory Procedures shall govern all hearing and pre-

hearing procedures. Respondents may contact the Hearing Clerk for a copy of these regulations.
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The Hearing Clerk’s name and address is:
Tamella Lakes, Hearing Clerk

P.O. Box 26110

1190 St. Francis Drive

Harold Runnels Building, N4084

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502

(505) 827-2842

FINALITY OF ORDER

6. This Order shall become final unless Respondents file a written Request for
Hearing and Answer within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Order. Failure by the
Respondents to file an Answer constitutes an admission of all facts alleged in the Order and a
waiver of Respondent’s right to a hearing under §74-4-10 of the HWA.

SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

7. Whether or not Respondents file an Answer and Request for Hearing,
Respondents may confer with Complainant concerning settlement. A request for a settlement
conference does not extend the thirty (30) day period during which the Answer and Request for
Hearing must be submitted. The settlement conference may be pur§ued as an alternative to, or
simultaneously with, the hearing proceedings. Respondents may appear at the settlement

conference or by represented by counsel.
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8. Any settlement reached by the parties shall be approved by a stipulated final Order

of the Secretary of NMED pursuant to the conditions set forth in 20 NMAC 1.5.601. The
issuance of such an Order shall serve to resolve all issues raisgd in the Order, shall be final and
binding on all parties to the Order, and shall not be appealable.

9. To explore the possibility of settlement in this matter, contact Ms. Debby
Brinkerhoff of the Environment Department, P.O. Box 26110, 1220 St. Francis Drive, Santa Fe,
NM 87501, telephone number (505) 827-1508.

TERMINATION

10. Compliance with the requirements of this Order does not relieve Respondents of
their obligation to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. This Order shall terminaie
\

when Respondents certify that all requirements of the Order have been completed and NMED

has approved sucmﬁcation, or when the Secretary approves a stipulated final order.

.Date:&(&mw ]5/‘; )7’97

By: 7
J —r——7
Gregory'J. Lewis, Director

Water and Waste Management Division
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that the foregoing Administrative Compliance Order was mailed postage

prepaid as follows on this day of December, 1999 to the following:

Via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested:

Mr. David A. Gurule, Area Manager

U.S. Department of Energy

Los Alamos Area Office ‘
528 35th Street, MS A316 \
Los Alamos, NM 87544

Dr. John C. Browne, Director
Los Alamos National Laboratory
P.O. Box 1663, MS A100

Los Alamos, NM 87545

Attorney NMED/OGC

Respondents are required to comply with all terms and conditions of its HWA permit. NMSA
1978, Section 74-4-10 of the HWA and 20 NMAC 4.1.900 (incorporating 40 CFR 270.4).
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